
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Board of Commissioners 

Regular Meeting 
August 6, 2024 – 7:00 PM 

502 Southtown Circle, Rolesville, NC 27571 
 

 

  

Agenda 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
  

3. Invocation 
  

4. Proclamations and Awards 
 
4.a. National Senior Citizens Day 
4.b. Honoring Estella Seworth on the Occasion of Her 100th Birthday. 
 

5. Consider Approval of the Agenda 
  

6. Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda: 
 

6.a. Consent:  Minutes of July 9th  and July 24th (EWLGA). 
6.b. Consent:  Community Group Funding. 
6.c. Consent:  Revised Chamber Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). 
6.d. Consent:  Request to waive Town Code 113.5 Alcoholic Beverages provision for the 

2024 Rolesville Chamber BB@Q & Bands Event September 28th at Main 
Street Park. 

6.e. Consent: ANX-23-04 (200 School Street) Call for Legislative Hearing for Voluntary 
 Annexation Petition and Rezoning Map Amendment for PIN 1758479244. 

6.f. Consent:  Direct the Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of Voluntary Annexation ANX- 
24-02 – Merritt Property and Call for Public Hearing for September 17, 2024. 

 
7. Public Invited to be Heard 

Individuals wishing to speak during the Public Invited to be Heard proceedings are encouraged to be prepared and individuals 
will be limited to three (3) minutes. Written comments are welcome and should be given to the Town Clerk prior to the start of 
the meeting. 

 
8. Town Board Liaison Reports 

 
8.a. Commissioner Alston – Veterans 
8.b. Commissioner Long – Public Safety 
8.c. Commissioner Paul – Senior Citizens 
8.d. Commissioner Sneed – Planning Board 
8.e. Commissioner Vilga – Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 



2 | P a g e T B _ A g e n d a _ 2 0 2 4 0 8 0 6

9. Communication from Town Staff

9.a. Planning Department - Meredith Gruber, Director
9.b. Community & Economic Development - Mical McFarland, Director

10. Old Business

NONE

11. New Business

Hearings 

11.a. Legislative Hearing: ANX-24-03 and REZ-24-03 for Voluntary Annexation Petition and
Rezoning Map Amendment for PIN 1758479244. 

11.b. Legislative Hearing: TA-24-01 Land Development Ordinance (LDO) Amendments to
Residential High Development Standards, Off-Street Parking Requirements, and 
Definitions. 

End of Hearings 

11.c. Acceptance of Bids for Farm Entrance.
11.d. Kalas Falls Reimbursement Agreement Discussion.

12. Communications

12.a. Town Attorney
12.b. Town Manager
12.c. Town Board

13. Closed Session Pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11.(a)(3) to Preserve the Attorney-Client Privilege
and NCGS 143-318.11.(a)(6) Personnel.

14. Adjourn

Future Meetings Document



 
 
 
 

Proclamation 
Proclaiming August 21, 2024 as  
“National Senior Citizens Day” 

 
 

WHEREAS, on August 21, 1988, then President Rondal Reagan proclaimed the day National Senior 
Citizens Day with Proclamation #5847, stating “For all they have achieved throughout life and for all they 
continue to accomplish, we owe older citizens our thanks and a heartfelt salute. We can best demonstrate 
our gratitude and esteem by making sure that our communities are good places in which to mature and grow 
older — places in which older people can participate to the fullest and can find the encouragement, 
acceptance, assistance, and services they need to continue to lead lives of independence and dignity.”; and 

 
WHEREAS, many traditions exist when it comes to senior citizens as many of our traditions growing up 
were set by them; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2020 the number of people aged 60 and above outnumbered children younger than five 
years; and 

 
WHEREAS, by year 2050, the increase in population of 60+-year-olds will be 22%; and 

 
WHEREAS, 3.6% of people over 65 years old are in nursing homes; and 

 
WHEREAS, 4 in 5 older adults will battle at least one chronic illness; and  

 
WHEREAS, 50% of elderly people battle at least two chronic diseases; and 
 
WHEREAS, one in three elderly people do not get any physical activity at age 75 and above; and 
 
WHEREAS, over 1/3 of federally subsidized housing is occupied by elderly people; and 
 
WHEREAS, senior citizens are the fastest growing demographic on the social platform Facebook; and 
 
WHEREAS, elderly family and friends have a lifetime’s worth of experiences and stories are and are an 
invaluable resource for wisdom, knowledge and advice; and 
 
WHEREAS, senior citizens make more charitable donations than any other age group, volunteer their time 
and look out for their loved ones 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that I, Ronnie I. Currin, Mayor, do hereby proclaim the 21st day of 
August 2024 as “National Senior Citizens Day” in Rolesville and from this day and beyond, we call upon 
all Rolesville citizens to celebrate older adults for their contributions, support their independence, and 
recognize their unparalleled value to our community. 
 
ADOPTED August 6, 2024. 

 
 

Ronnie I. Currin, Mayor 



 

 

 
 

Proclamation of the Town of Rolesville 
 

Recognizing Estella Seworth 
 
WHEREAS, Estella Seworth will be honored by friends and relatives on the occasion of her 100th birthday 
on August 3, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, she was born July 31, 2024 in Pitt County, North Carolina to Elisha and Betty Crandall; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Seworth was born 6th of 14 children; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Seworth’s school years ended with the completion of 8th grade, after which she became 
the family seamstress; and 

 
WHEREAS, she became the wife of S. T. Jackson at the age of 17 and was blessed with 7 girls by the 
age of 28; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Seworth instilled the value of education in her daughters, who all went on to earn college 
degrees; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Seworth became widowed at the age of 41; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Seworth received her GED at the age of 57 and continued working until the age of 80; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Seworth has been a Rolesville resident since 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, seventeen United States Presidents have been in office in her lifetime, and she has lived 
during one of the most eventful centuries of this world’s history. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Ronnie I. Currin Mayor of the Town of Rolesville do hereby deem it an honor 
and pleasure to extend this Proclamation to Estella Seworth on the occasion of her 100th birthday, with 
sincere congratulations and best wishes for many more happy, healthy, and productive years.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do hereby set my hand and cause the seal of Rolesville to be affixed this 
July ____, 2024. 
 
 
          
         Ronnie I. Currin, Mayor 



Page 1 of 5 
 

 
Board of Commissioners 

Regular Meeting 
July 9, 2024 – 7:00 PM 

502 Southtown Circle, Rolesville, NC 27571 
 

 

  

Minutes 
 
 
 

Present: Mayor Ronnie Currin     Mayor Pro Tem April Sneed 
  Commissioner Dan Alston   Commissioner Lenwood Long 
  Commissioner Michael Paul   Commissioner Paul Vilga 
  Town Manager Eric Marsh   Town Clerk Robin Peyton 
  Deputy Town Attorney Erin Catlett  Police Chief David Simmons 
  Human Resources Director Lisa Alston 
   

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Currin called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Currin led the Pledge of Allegiance 
  

3. Invocation – Steve Davis, Bethlehem Baptist Church 
Pastor Davis gave the invocation 
  

4. Proclamations and Awards 
Parks and Recreation Month 
 
Commissioner Vilga, Liaison to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board, read aloud the 
Proclamation for Parks and Recreation Month 
 

5. Consider Approval of the Agenda 
Moved by Commissioner Long to approve the agenda; seconded by Commissioner 
Alston. Motion to approve carried by unanimous vote. 
  

6. Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda: 
Moved by Commissioner Vilga to approve the Consent Agenda as presented and 
consisting of the following: 

 
6.a. Consent: Minutes of May 7th, May 21st, June 4th and June 18th. 
6.b. Consent: Powell Bill Street List. 
6.c. Consent: Strategic Plan. 
6.d. Consent: ANX-24-03, PIN 1758479244 - Call to Investigate Sufficiency and Call for a 

Legislative Hearing to be held August 6, 2024 
6.e. Consent: ANX-23-04, 200 School Street - Call to Investigate Sufficiency  
 

https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=543
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=573
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=591
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=666
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=902
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=920


2 | P a g e                                 T B _ A g e n d a _ 2 0 2 4 0 7 0 9  
 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda seconded by Commissioner Paul and carried by 
unanimous vote. 
 

7. Public Invited to be Heard 
NONE 

 
8. Town Board Liaison Reports 

 
8.a. Commissioner Alston – Veterans 

• July 9th marks the 106th anniversary of the Warrant Officer Corps. 
• Navy Talent Acquisition Group is holding a retirement event for Navy Commander 

Ian Lopez on July 12th at 10:00 a.m. at North Carolina State University McKinnon 
Center, 101 Gorman Street, Raleigh, NC. 

• Commander Lopez is a resident of Rolesville. 
• Veteran Bridge Home will hold a // event on Thursday, July 25th at the Steven A 

Cohen Military Family Center at Centerstone, 3505 Village Dr, Fayetteville, NC.  
• Sergeant C. J. Jones of Grit City Boxing & Fitness, 8813 Gulf Ct # F, Raleigh, NC 

27617, is offering free boxing classes to Veterans and their dependents on 
Wednesdays from 2:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. and on Saturdays at 12:00 p.m. 

• Coffee with a Veteran meets every third Saturday of the month at ARISE but this 
month will be held July 20th and hosted by Disabled American Veterans Wake 
County Chapter 1. 

• Veterans fellowship breakfast will be held at I HOP at 9:30 a.m. on the last 
Wednesday of the month. 

• The Joel Fund is starting their Fall Operation Art Session on August 5th through 
September 13th. Registration begins July 11th. The Joel Fund Veterans Coffee 
Connection will be held on Wednesday, July 24th at 8:30 a.m. at 822 S. White Street, 
#106, Wake Forest. 

• The Rolesville Men’s Bible Study is each Tuesday from 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 
  

8.b. Commissioner Long – Public Safety 
• Second week of the NC Governors Highway Safety Program. Our officers cited 104 

traffic violations in the first week of July alone. 
• The Popsicles with Police program is underway. Officers will be out at the town’s 

parks with coolers containing popsicles for these popup events so please stop and 
have a popsicle and a chat with them. 

• October 1st – National Night Out. 
• Helmet Safety Citation Program is underway. If an officer spots a child operating a 

bicycle while wearing a helmet the officer will issue the child a “citation” good for an 
ice cream/small meal at McDonalds in Rolesville. 

• Working through Rolesville Rural Fire Department unification and have entered the 
second phase following the Resolution signing with the town on June 4th. 
 

8.c. Commissioner Paul – Senior Citizens 
• June 14th Commissioner Paula and Mayor Currin attended a round-table discussion 

in Wake County on Senior housing in Wake County and specifically in the Rolesville 
district. The event was hosted by North Carolina State Representative James 
Roberson and was well attended. At the event, Commissioner Paul presented a 
high-level review of the senior affordable housing project currently being worked on. 
The presentation was overwhelmingly and positively received. 

https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=965
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=980
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=1260
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=1568


3 | P a g e                                 T B _ A g e n d a _ 2 0 2 4 0 7 0 9  
 

• Forming an advisory committee with Rolesville citizens to address senior affordable 
housing issues and other issues affecting our senior community. The first meeting 
will be in September. 

• Senior Citizens page is now on the town’s website. 
• A survey to request input on the livability of our town is to be carried out soon. More 

to come on that. 
• The Senior Network has a calendar of events. Please follow 

https://www.theseniornetwork.org/events for more details. 
• For information on Senior events sponsored by the Town of Rolesville Parks and 

Recreation Department follow: https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/parks-recreation. 
 

8.d. Commissioner Sneed – Planning Board 
• The Planning Board met on June 24th. 
• The board discussed age-restricted dwellings and a needed amendment to the Land 

Development Ordinance regarding age-restricted lots to include a maximum of eight 
dwelling units per square acre for age-restricted lots. And a lot width of 40’ for single-
family detached age-restricted, and 4000’ sq. ft. and 1,900 sq. ft. (minimum area) for 
single-family detached age-restricted. 

• New Planning staff member Tanner Hayslette presented a residential inventory 
project he is working on which outlined the approximate 9,186 lots that are approved 
and expected to be built out in the next ten years. The lots were 7,182 single-family 
and 2,000 townhome lots respectively. 

• Tanner is also working on a flowchart that walks the public and developers through 
the stages of development from initial application submission to approval to be built. 

• The Planning Department has signed a lease for 200 N. Main Street which will 
provide a much-needed six offices for the Planning Department. The anticipated 
move-in date is the first week of August pending receipt of internet technology and 
furnishings. 
 

8.e. Commissioner Vilga – Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 
• Parks and Recreation Advisory Board met on June 26th. 
• Farm entrance is out for bid. 
• Hired a new athletic coordinator. 
• Revised upcoming events. Reviewed recent events: Memorial Mile, Juneteenth, 

Litter Sweep, and 4th of July. 
• Revised a proposed layout for Pine Glo development. 

 
9. Communication from Town Staff 

 
Human Resources Director Lisa Alston reported on the following: 
• Team Rolesville Construction Plan. 
• After passing out actual bricks to everyone including audience members, Ms. Alston asked 

the recipients to write on the brick what is important to them and what brought them to the 
meeting this evening. 

• The bricks, though similar, are not perfect and represent team Rolesville. The bricks, along 
with what is written on them will be taken back to the staff development team to discuss. 

• The mortar that holds the bricks together is the employees. They are what hold the 
foundation together. 

• 6 steps of construction ultimately leading to close out to the occupants. The employees are 
the occupants in the illustration. 

https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/community-resources/senior-community
https://www.theseniornetwork.org/events
https://www.rolesvillenc.gov/parks-recreation
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=1773
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=2049
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=2159


4 | P a g e                                 T B _ A g e n d a _ 2 0 2 4 0 7 0 9  
 

• Learning that works / CTE program. 
• Discussion held on hiring an Assistant Town Manager. 
 

10. Old Business 

NONE 
 

11. New Business 

11.a. Community Group Funding. 
Following an explanation of the program, Commissioner Vilga reported that the 
application review committee for the Community Group Funding recommended 
the following be awarded: 
i. Rolesville High School Band ............... $2,500. + $500 
ii. Thorne to Rose ................................... $2,500. 
iii. Village Church Rolesville .................... $5,000 
iv. Wake County DAV .............................. $1,500 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vilga to recommend funding the organizations outlined 
for the amounts indicated. Following discussion, the motion as amended to 
recommend an additional $500 (remaining in the budget) be awarded to Rolesville 
High School Band; seconded by Commissioner Alston. Motion to recommend 
award funding to the organizations outlined by Commissioner Vilga for the 
amounts indicated carried by unanimous vote. Final approval to come as a 
Consent Agenda item for the board’s consideration at its August 6, 2024 Town 
Board meeting. 
 

11.b. Appointments to the Planning Board and Board of Adjustment. 
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Sneed to appoint Frank Pearce who will vacate his 
position on the Board of Adjustment to serve the remaining ETJ term vacated by 
Steve Hill on the Planning Board with the term ending December 31, 2024 and 
appoint Board of Adjustment applicant Daniel Fox to the vacated Board of 
Adjustment position ending December 31, 2025; seconded by Commissioner 
Alston. Motions to appoint carried by unanimous vote. 

 
12. Communications 

 
12.a. Town Attorney 

 NONE 
 

12.b. Town Manager 
• Provided updates on Community Projects (federal level) funding.  
• Provided an update on Kalas Falls development special use permit condition for road 

improvements on Rolesville Road and expenses/credits. 
 
12.c. Town Board 
 NONE 
 

13. Closed Session Pursuant to N.C.G.S.143-318.11.(a)(6) Personnel. 
Moved by Commissioner Vilga to enter closed session pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) 
to discuss a personnel matter; seconded by Commissioner Paul Motion to enter closed 
session carried by unanimous vote. Town Board entered closed session at 8:30 a.m. 

https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=3654
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=4151
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=4398
https://youtu.be/k4u8uomtMYA?t=4441


5 | P a g e                                 T B _ A g e n d a _ 2 0 2 4 0 7 0 9  
 

 
14. Adjourn 

Following the board’s return from Closed Session and there being no further business, 
Mayor Currin adjourned the meeting at 10:18 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
Ronnie I. Currin, Mayor 

      ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Robin E. Peyton, Town Clerk 
 



 

 
East Wake Local Government Association 

July 24 2024 

6:30 p.m. 
 

MINUTES 

(Dinner served prior to meeting) 

 
Present: Mayor Ronnie Currin     Mayor Pro Tem April Sneed 

  Commissioner Dan Alston   Commissioner Lenwood Long 
  Commissioner Michael Paul   Commissioner Paul Vilga 
  Town Manager Eric Marsh   Town Clerk Robin Peyton 
  
 Also Present were the boards/councils of Zebulon, Knightdale and Wendell as well as 
 administrative staff. 

 

1. Welcome/Call to Order 

Mayor Currin called the meeting to order and welcomed those present. 

2. Presentations 

2.a. Don Mial – Wake County Commissioner, District 1 

Commissioner Mial reported that Wake County is expanding hours and staff at 
nature preserves, helping bring new fire stations to eastern Wake County 
municipalities, working to bring a new library to Rolesville, assisting with 
renovations of libraries in Knightdale, Wendell, and Zebulon. 

On the topic of affordable housing, Wake County Commissioner Mial reported 
that the county is about 65,000 units short, and that the county’s responsibility is 
to help build schools and not fund teacher’s salaries as feels that should be borne 
by  legislation. 

Farmland preservation was an additional topic.  

Lastly Commissioner Mial encouraged the municipalities to have shovel ready 
property and reminded everyone not to overlook substance abuse (County passed 



an ordinance stating that Vape Shops cannot be located within a certain distance 
from schools). 

2.b. Mayor Ronnie I. Currin – Town of Rolesville 

Mayor Currin gave a comprehensive presentation on how the watershed splits 
Rolesville in half and the impact this has on Rolesville. Mayor Currin shared the 
following document as emphasis: 

 



3. Round-Robin updates from each municipality 

Each municipality took turns sharing the victories and challenges they 
experienced since the last meeting held January 31, 2024 in Knightdale. 

4. Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

        Ronnie I. Currin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

Robin E. Peyton, Town Clerk 

 

 



Town of Rolesville 
PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.556.3506 

 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor and Town Board 
From: Robin Peyton, Town Clerk 
Date: July 30, 2024 
Re: Agenda Item #6.b. Community Group Funding 

 
 
 

Background 
 

The Town Board, at this July 9, 2024 meeting, considered recommendations for Community 
Group Funding awards put forth by application review committee members Mayor Pro Tem 
Sneed and Commissioner Vilga. 

Four applications were received and contained varied requests for funds from the FY2024/2025 
budgeted amount of $12,000. 

 
The applications received, amounts requested, and awards recommended were as follows: 

 
Applicant Request Recommendation 

Rolesville High School Band $2,500 $3,000* 
Thorne to Rose $2,500 $2,500 
Village Church Rolesville $5,000 $5,000 
Wake County DAV $1,500 $1,500 

Please note that a recommendation has been put forth to award an additional $500 to the 
Rolesville High School Band, above what they requested, following discussion and subsequent 
motion occurring in the July 9, 2024 Town Board Regular Meeting. 

A formal vote to approve these recommended awards is needed. 

The next request for applications for the FY2025/2026 program will be advertised in January 2025 
and will extend to March 15, 2025. 

Recommended Action 

Move to approve the award of Community Group funds as recommended by the review 
committee. 

Move to approve differing amounts (specify recipients/amounts) at the Town Board’s discretion. 



 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor Currin and Rolesville Town Board 
From: Mical McFarland, Economic Development Director 
Date: August 6, 2024 
Re: Consent Agenda Item #6.c. Rolesville Chamber of Commerce Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) revision 

Background 
 
Each year, the Town of Rolesville and Chamber of Commerce enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) highlighting the partnership and coordination of activities and events 
between the two entities.  The MOU also states the agreed upon financial contribution from the 
Town to the Chamber to support small businesses, entrepreneurship, and economic 
development. The Town Boad approved the FY24-25 MOU in June.  

The Chamber reached out to staff realizing that the final version of the “Contribution Chart” of 
the MOU wasn’t presented to the Town Board when approved in June.  There is a minor change 
request:  Rolesville Business Saturday will not be taking place this year, and the Chamber 
would like the $500 allocated to it to go towards the Military Appreciation Luncheon instead, so 
that the total contributed for the Military Luncheon is $1,000.  This does not change the Town’s 
total dollar amount approved overall.   
 
Attached herein is the previously approved MOU as well as a redlined version showing the 
above revision.  
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends approval of the revised MOU to continue partnering with and supporting the 
Chamber of Commerce and programs that promote economic development and a good 
business climate in Rolesville.  
 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Previously approved MOU 
2. Revised MOU 

 





4th June





 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
Between the Town of Rolesville and the Rolesville Chamber of Commerce 

Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
 

 
This memorandum of understanding, made between the Town of Rolesville (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Town”) and the Rolesville Chamber of Commerce (hereinafter referred to as “the Chamber”), hereinafter 
referred to as the “agreement”. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town and the Chamber both value and support the businesses in the Rolesville community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town realizes the importance of the Rolesville Chamber of Commerce in supporting, networking, 
and promoting businesses in the Rolesville community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town desires to support the efforts of the Chamber of Commerce in bringing the business 
community together by organizing and holding events. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations and promises set forth below, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 
 
The Town agrees to: 
 

1. Remain a member of the Chamber of Commerce and pay annual dues for the Visionary Partner level in 
the amount of $460. 

2. Contribute to the Chamber $28,000 throughout the fiscal year. Attached is a chart showing the fiscal 
participation by the Town per line item.  

3. Provide the use of Council Chamber space at Town Hall for a total of 48 hours at no cost.  Reservation 
and use can be any date and time when no prior reservations or scheduled use exist.   

4. Provide the use of the Community Center space at Town Hall for a total of 40 hours at no cost.  A “Facility 
Use Request” should be submitted at least two (2) months in advance, and the Chamber must use the 
Town’s standard rental form and abide by the conditions for the rental including cleaning.  Scheduling 
for this will need to work around any classes or paying reservations established prior to the Chamber’s 
Facility Use Request application.  

5. Make available four (4) off-duty police officers throughout nine (9) hours for the annual BBQ event. 
6. Provide at least fifteen (15) police officers throughout four (4) hours for the Christmas Parade. This will 

be an in-kind donation by the Town absorbing the cost. 
7. Provide the use of Town facilities for existing members of the Rolesville Chamber of Commerce at the 

resident rate of $45 per hour (2 hour minimum) when no prior reservations or scheduled use exits.  For 
rentals after office hours, weekends, and/or holidays, an additional $15 per hour will be charged for 
staffing. The maximum opportunities for the reduced reservation shall not exceed six (6) events within 
the term of this agreement. Facility use reservations shall be submitted by the Chamber of Commerce 
staff at least two (2) months prior to the requested date. 

8. Share use of/access to EastWakeTV to support and promote the Town and Rolesville businesses. 
 
 
The Chamber agrees to: 
 

1. Complement the Town’s economic development efforts through: 
 



 

a. Launch Rolesville, a program which supports and promotes entrepreneurship and small business 
development in Rolesville. 

b. The Youth Leadership Program, helping to educate the community’s youth learn more about 
our community, assume leadership roles in our schools, and to become more involved in 
Rolesville’s civic, cultural, economic development, and philanthropic organizations and groups. 

c. Local Business Retention and Expansion (BRE) in partnership with the Town’s Community & 
Economic Development Manager to engage and support the local business community and 
promote economic development.  

d. Participation with the Town to communicate and organize activities and events that market 
Rolesville as a great place to do business, promote tourism, help recruit new business, and 
create a good business climate in Rolesville.  Events include Rolesville Business Saturday, 
Women’s Leadership Brunch, and a Military Appreciation Luncheon. 

e. Development of resources to promote the Town, such as a Rolesville Community Guide and a 
“Welcome Wagon” packet of information for new residents. 

 
2. Provide the Town of Rolesville twelve (12) tickets to their annual dinner. 
3. Provide the Town of Rolesville six (6) tickets to the Women’s Leadership Brunch. 
4. Provide the Town of Rolesville premium advertisement on all marketing material produced.  This 

includes banners, programs, and printed ads for the annual BBQ event, Christmas Parade, Golf 
Tournament, Military Appreciation Event, Women’s Leadership Brunch, Rolesville Business Saturday, 
and the Annual Dinner.  

5. Provide the Town space in the Christmas parade and one parade float free of charge. 
6. Pay the current off-duty rate directly to the four (4) police officers (to be determined) for the nine (9) 

hours service at the annual BBQ event.  
7. Provide premium sponsorship advertising and one foursome team registration at the annual Chamber 

Golf Tournament.  
8. Rollover $4,000 from MOU 2023-2024 allocated for the 2023 BBQ Event to the 2024 BBQ Event. 
9. Per the provisions of N.C. General Statute 55A-16-24, provide annual financial statements to the Town, 

as well as a report of activities showing how the funds received from the Town of Rolesville are being 
used. Documents are to be received prior to the signing of the subsequent fiscal year’s MOU.  

 
This agreement is effective from the date of execution until June 30, 2025.  At any point in time, either party 
may request that the responsibilities be amended.  This agreement can be cancelled at any time throughout the 
term by either party with 30 days prior written notice to the other party. 
 
 
Agreed upon this ____ day of _______ by the Town of Rolesville Board of Commissioners 
 
 
_________________________________   ________________________________ 
Town of Rolesville        Rolesville Chamber of Commerce  
Mayor        Chair 
 
 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control 
Act.  
_________________________________ 
Finance Officer   Date  
 



 

 
 

Town of Rolesville Contribution to the Rolesville Chamber of Commerce 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 

 
 
 

Programs Allocation 
• Launch Rolesville $4,550 
• Business After Hours $1,500 
• Lunch and Learn Series $1,500 
• Ambassador Program  $500 
• Youth Leadership $2,200 

  
Events  

• Annual Dinner $2,350 
• Rolesville Business Saturday $500 
• BBQ & Bands $2,600 
• Christmas Parade $2,100 
• Golf Tournament $2,600 
• Military Appreciation Event/Luncheon $1,000 
• Women’s Leadership Brunch $1,850 

  
Organizational Expenses  

• Website, Technology & Branding $2,250 
• Welcome Wagon $1,500 
• Insurance (for events) $1,500 

  
Total Allocation  $28,000 
  

 



 

Town of Rolesville 
PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.556.3506 

 

Memorandum 
To: Mayor & Town Board 
From: June Greene, Parks & Recreation Director 
Date: August 6, 2024 
Re: Town Code 113.5 Alcoholic Beverages 

 

Background 

Rolesville Chamber of Commerce is requesting that the Town Board allow alcoholic beverages 
at BBQ & Bands at Main Street Park (Near Scarboro Rd.) on September 28, 2024.  Rolesville 
Chamber of Commerce has applied for a Special Event Permit and has met the approval of both  
the Police and Parks and Recreation Departments. 

Board Options 

1) Waive Town Code 113.5 Alcoholic Beverages provision for the event. 
2) Do not allow alcoholic beverages at the 2024 BBQ & Bands 

 

Relationship to Current Budget/Goals 

NONE 

 

Recommended Action 

Move to temporarily waive Town Code 113.5 Alcoholic Beverages provision for BBQ & Bands 
on September 28, 2024. 

 

 

Attachments:  Special Event Permit Application 

  Email requesting permission to sell alcohol on park property 

  Certificate of Insurance 

  BBQ & Bands Map Outline 



 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor and Town Board of Commissioners 

From: Meredith Gruber, Planning Director and Michele Raby, Planner II 

Date: August 1, 2024 

Re: ANX-23-04 – 200 School Street, Call for Legislative Hearing on September 3, 2024 

 
Summary Information 
The Town of Rolesville received a contiguous voluntary annexation petition for 0.7366 acres, 
located at 200 School Street, an addressed property with Wake County PIN 1758998560, into 
the Town of Rolesville Town Limits.  The associated rezoning case is REZ-23-05, Scarboro 
Apartments. 
 
As provided in G.S. 160A-31, the petition was investigated by the Town Clerk as to its 
sufficiency.  The next step is to schedule a legislative hearing for ANX-23-04. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Town Board of Commissioners schedule a legislative hearing on 
September 3, 2024 for the annexation petition ANX-23-04.  
 
Suggested Motion 
Motion to schedule a legislative hearing on September 3, 2024 for the annexation petition 
received under G.S. 160A-31 for ANX-23-04. 
 
Attachments 

1. Annexation Petition 
2. Certificate of Sufficiency 



ANX 23-04 / V1 rcvd 6-2-23

wmills
Text Box





 
 

Memo 
To: Town of Rolesville Mayor Currin and Board of Commissioners 
From: Meredith Gruber, Planning Director 
Date: August 6, 2024 
Re: 0 South Main- PIN 1758479244,  

Rezoning Case REZ-24-03 & Voluntary Annexation Petition ANX-24-03 

Background 
Rezoning – REZ-24-03 
The Town of Rolesville Planning Department received this Rezoning application (Attachment 4) 
in March 2024, for 3.778 acres consisting of one (1) lot located on the western side of S. Main 
Street just north of Jonesville Road and south of Burlington Mills. The property is not within the 
Town’s Corporate Limits but rather lies in the Town’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). The 
request is to change the zoning from the existing General Industrial (GI) Zoning District to a 
General Commercial Conditional Zoning District (GC-CZ). This submittal includes a set of 
proposed Conditions of Approval. See Attachments 9 and 10, the application and proposed 
Ordinnace 2024-O-12. 
 
Voluntary Annexation Petition – ANX-24-03  
A contiguous, voluntary annexation petition has been submitted, reviewed, and processed 
simultaneously with this Rezoning application request; see Attachments 7 and 8, the petition and 
proposed Ordinance 2024-O-11.  On July 9, 2024, the Town Board called for the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the Petition in meeting G.S. 160A-31, and called for a date-certain 
Legislative hearing to occur on August 6, 2024. 
 
Applicant Justification 
The Applicant provided a brief statement regarding the submittal noting the desire to integrate 
seamlessly with the surrounding community (see Attachment 5). 
 
Neighborhood Meetings 
The Applicant conducted a neighborhood meeting for this current Rezoning request on May 20, 
2024; see Attachment 6 for the Applicant’s material on this.   
 
Comprehensive Plan 
Land Use 
The 2017 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map designates the subject property – and a 
half dozen other adjacent properties - as appropriate for Industrial development. See Attachment 
3, Future Land Use map. At the time (2017 era) all of these properties were zoned the Industrial 
District under the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO, now expired) and thus Future Land Use 
matched existing conditions (zoning).   



2 

 
Community Transportation Plan  
The Town of Rolesville’s Community Transportation Plan (CTP, adopted 2021) has no 
recommendations adjacent to this property.  S. Main Street is identified as a 2-lane median divided 
roadway with a sidewalk and Sidepath, and the LAPP Main Street Improvement project is 
constructing Main Street to that cross-section.  This property would construct any unbuilt sidewalk 
and pedestrian facilities along its frontage at the time of development.  
 
Greenway and Bike Plans 
As per the 2022 Greenway and Bike Plans, a Sidepath is proposed along the east side of South 
Main Street, and this is being constructed as part of the LAPP Main Street improvement project.  
 
Traffic  
Due to the lack of specifics entailed in this request – there is no development proposed in a 
Concept Site Plan nor any quantifiable physical development detailed in the Condition of 
Approval, the Land Development Administrator (LDA) waived the requirement for a TIA at this 
point of rezoning entitlement.  Traffic generation will be considered upon review of a Subdivision 
plat or Site Development Plan for the ultimate development of the property.  
 
Development Review 
The Technical Review Committee (TRC) reviewed one submittal of the Rezoning application; the 
Planning Staff worked with the Applicant on the proposed Conditions of Approval language. 
 
Planning Board Recommendation  
The Planning Board met on May 28, 2024, to review and provide a recommendation on the 
Rezoning application. Following presentations by Staff and the Applicant, Board members 
asked about Town water, noise, and buffer requirements. 
 
The Planning Board made a recommendation of Approval (to the Town Board of 
Commissioners) with a 6-0 vote (6 ayes / 0 nays / 1 absent.) 
 
Staff Analysis / Recommendation 
The Applicant’s rezoning request is inconsistent with the Town of Rolesville’s Comprehensive 
Plan Future Land Use Map (FLUM) – this is primarily because the FLUM was reflecting existing 
zoning of the land (and thus supporting that land entitlement) rather than providing a vision for 
the future of the South Main Street corridor.  The later adopted Main Street Vision plan corrected 
this and set forth policy direction that commercial, service, and retail development is more 
appropriate directly fronting and accessed from S. Main Street than are typical industrial uses 
facilitated by the existing General Industrial zoning district (and the Comprehensive Plan’s 
industrial future land use category). 
 
Therefore, Staff finds the outdated Comprehensive Plan’s policy is usurped by the Main Street 
Vision Plan, and this request is thereby consistent with the Town’s more recent policy direction 
for land use for this property.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Rezoning request REZ-24-03 due to its consistency with the Main 
Street Vision plan, alignment with other surrounding tracts that have been rezoned (by the Town 



3 

Board of Commissioners) to General Commercial Districts in recent years, and the synergy this 
tract, as a GC district, will have with the nearby Wallbrook development and the soon to be 
completed Main Street and Burlington Mills Road realignment improvements. 
 
Consistency and Reasonableness 
As noted above under the Comprehensive Plan section of this report, and the Staff analysis, the 
rezoning request for the subject parcel is – overall - consistent with Rolesville’s vision both in 
Policy documents and the Board of Commissioners legislative decisions over the past several 
years.  Rezoning application REZ-24-03 is thus consistent, despite the undeniable inconsistency 
with the 2017 Future Land use designation of “Industrial”, and is therefore reasonable. 
 
Proposed Motion 

1. Motion to (approve or deny) rezoning REZ-24-03 – 0 South Main, PIN 1758479244. 
 

2. (Following Approval) Motion to adopt a Plan Consistency Statement and Statement of 
Reasonableness for REZ-24-03. 
 

3. Motion to (approve or deny) the Voluntary Annexation Petition received under G.S. 
160A-31 for ANX-24-03, 0 South Main, PIN 1758479244. 

Or  

4. Motion to continue the Legislative Hearing and/or further consideration for REZ-24-03 
and ANX-24-03 to a future date-certain Town Board of Commissioners’ meeting. 

 
Attachments   

1 Vicinity Map 
2 Zoning Map 
3 Future Land Use Map 
4 Map Amendment (Rezoning) Application 
5 Applicant Statement of Justification 
6 Applicant Neighborhood Meeting Package 
7 Voluntary Annexation Petition Ordinance 2024-O-11 
8 Voluntary Annexation Petition Attachments to Ordinance 2024-O-11 
9 Rezoning Map Amendment Ordinance 2024-O-12 

10 Rezoning Map Amendment Attachments to Ordinance 2024-O-12 
 



Attachment 1



Attachment 2



Attachment 3



Zoning Map Change (Rezoning) Application 
Town of Rolesville Planning Department | PO Box 250 | Rolesville, NC 27571 | 919-554-6517 | planning@rolesville.nc.gov  

Planning Department Home Page: Official Town Webpage  

 

APPLICATION INFORMATION: 

Site Address(es): Site Area (in acres): 

Rezoning Type: ☐ General     ☐ Conditional Location: ☐ County Limits    ☐ Town Limits     ☐ ETJ  

Existing Zoning District(s): Proposed Zoning District(s):  

 

Zoning Overlay(s):  
Associated Previous Case Number(s): 

PIN(s): 

PID(s): 

Current Use(s): Proposed Use(s): 

APPLICATION MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS / GUIDANCE:: 

 Completed application and checklist below.  

  If the request is for a Conditional District per LDO    
 Section 3.3., submittal shall include a separate          
document being a list of written Conditions of Approval 
that can include exhibits, plans, maps, etc. Provide a 
Date and space for revision Dates; this document will 
always be referenced including its Date. 

 A Concept (nee site) Plan may be submitted, considered, 
and approved as part of a Conditional District request; it shall 
be clearly incorporated into a written condition for “general 
compliance” upon future Development Application reviews and 
approvals. Provide a Date and space for revision Dates; this 
document will always be referenced including its Date.  See 
Next page for details. 

 Completed Property Owner’s Consent Form. If 
multiple owners, each owner must complete their own 
form. 

    Presubmittal meeting notes and date (if applicable). 

  Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA), ITE Trip Generation 
Letter, or Letter/Email from Planning staff confirming 
TIA is not required. (LDO Section 8.C.5) 

 The Activity Center (AC) and Neighborhood Commercial 
(NC) zoning districts shall require submittal of a Concept 
(nee site) Plan  per LDO Sections 3.4.1 and 3.4.2. 

   Upon application receipt and completeness check, an INVOICE for the application fee will be created and issued via 
email to Applicant. 

   Any additional supporting documents that may have been requested by Staff may have been provided. 

Contact Information  

Property Owner(s)                                                                                                                                  

Address  City/State/Zip  

Phone  Email   

Applicant / Agent (Business & Contact Name)   

Address  City/State/Zip  

Phone  Email   

Engineer/Architect (Business & Contact Name)   

Phone  Email   

Preferred Point of Contact:  ☐ Owner            ☐ Applicant             ☐ Engineer/Architect         ☐ Registered Agent/Attorney 

Last Revised: April 10, 2023 

Attachment 4

ParkerE
Text Box
1758479244

ParkerE
Text Box
General Commercial (GC)

ParkerE
Text Box
Vacant

ParkerE
Text Box
0 South Main Street

ParkerE
Text Box
3.80

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Text Box
General Industrial (GI)

ParkerE
Text Box
SDP-23-08

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Text Box
Grand Park Properties LLC

ParkerE
Text Box
2636 Wait Ave

ParkerE
Text Box
Wake Forest, NC 27587

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Text Box
SeamonWhiteside

ParkerE
Text Box
(864) 612-6101

ParkerE
Text Box
pevans@seamonwhiteside.com

ParkerE
Text Box
SHJ Development LLC

ParkerE
Text Box
124 East Thompson Street

ParkerE
Text Box
Thomaston, GA 30286

ParkerE
Text Box
(478) 957-3777

ParkerE
Text Box
martie@shjconstructiongroup.com

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Text Box
Carwash

ParkerE
Image



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Concept Plan Minimum Requirements ( Required for AC or NC Districts, optional for Conditional Districts. ) :  
 A vicinity map of the site, illustrating the boundaries of the site, north arrow, and scale reference 
 Site Data Table of typical property information (Property Legal Description, acreage/square footage, etc) 

 If Commercial - Square footage of proposed building/use/development on, approximate proposed Impervious 
Coverage, approximate parking calculations, if multi-family the number of Dwelling units, etc. 

 If Residential – Number of proposed development lots (including by type of lots/use), density 
(proposed/permitted), approximate parking calculations, 

 Required/Provided calculations for open space 
 Existing and Proposed Use and Zoning District of property and adjacent properties 
 Drawing depicting the details provided above and general concept of development such as –  

 Lot layout and size/dimension of lots,  
 Proposed building layout and/or general footprint locations 
 Vehicular circulation / street layout including existing/proposed right-of-way widths (public, alley, private) 
 Pedestrian circulation including Greenways / Sidepaths / Bike Lanes,  
 General Utility access and points of connection / extensions,  
 Buffers (Street/Perimeter), Open/communal spaces, stormwater control measures etc.   

 Name, address, and contact information for property owner and/or Applicant 
 Name/information of professional who created Concept Plan  
 Any other information requested by Planning Department staff  

 

Rezoning Justification 

Provide a separate document titled “Statement of Justification” (including Date) that addresses each/all of the following:   

1. Is the application consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Community Transportation Plan, Bicycle and Greenway 
Plans, and any other adopted Town policy plans? 

2. Is the application in conflict with any provision of the LDO or the Town Code of Ordinances? 

3. Does the application correct any errors in the existing zoning present at the time it was adopted? 

4. Does the rezoning allow uses that are compatible with existing and permitted uses on surrounding 
land/properties? 

5. Would the application ensure efficient development within the Town, including the capacity and safety of the street 
network, public facilities, and other similar considerations? 

6. Would the application result in a logical and orderly development pattern? 

7. Would the application result in adverse impacts on water, air, noise, storm water management, wildlife, vegetation, 
wetlands, and the natural functioning of the environment? 

8. If a Conditional district providing proposed Conditions of Approval, do they address and mitigate the impacts 
reasonably expected to be generated by the development or use of the property, can they reasonably be 
implemented, and can they be enforced for the subject property, and will they result in no greater impact on adjacent 
properties or the community at large than would be expected to occur by the permitted uses and the minimum 
development standards of the corresponding General zoning district. 

Property Owner Notification List 
Per UDO __TBD___, provide list of all property owners within 300 feet of the subject site (per Wake County tax records at the time of filing this application) 
as they will are required to receive a Notification Letter regarding the Public Hearing before the Town Board of Commissioners (when scheduled).  If 
needed, provide additional sheets to insure all are included.  

 

WAKE COUNTY PIN NAME MAILING ADDRESS ZIP CODE 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

ParkerE
Text Box
1758474075

ParkerE
Text Box
1758475117

ParkerE
Text Box
809 Middle Ground Ave, Rolesville, NC

ParkerE
Text Box
27571

ParkerE
Text Box
Shawn K Kline and Michelle Stewart

ParkerE
Text Box
801 Middle Ground Ave, Rolesville, NC

ParkerE
Text Box
Jorge Romero Perez

ParkerE
Text Box
27571

ParkerE
Text Box
800 Middle Ground Ave, Rolesville, NC

ParkerE
Text Box
27571

ParkerE
Text Box
1758474234

ParkerE
Text Box
1758473364

ParkerE
Text Box
1003 Evening Shade Ave, Rolesville, NC

ParkerE
Text Box
27571

ParkerE
Text Box
Robert and Susan Fernicola

ParkerE
Text Box
Hoang M Tran and Hang Nguyen

ParkerE
Text Box
1758475494

ParkerE
Text Box
City of Raleigh

ParkerE
Text Box
PO Box 590

ParkerE
Text Box
27602

ParkerE
Text Box
1758486155

ParkerE
Text Box
Brothers Forty Six LLC

ParkerE
Text Box
1220 Old Watkins Road, Raleigh, NC

ParkerE
Text Box
27616

ParkerE
Text Box
1758479681

ParkerE
Text Box
Grand Park Properties LLC

ParkerE
Text Box
2636 Wait Ave, Wake Forest, NC

ParkerE
Text Box
27587

ParkerE
Text Box
1758474408

ParkerE
Text Box
John and Jennifer Briand

ParkerE
Text Box
1000 Evening Shade Ave, Rolesville, NC

ParkerE
Text Box
27571

ParkerE
Text Box
1758571481

ParkerE
Text Box
Grand Park Properties LLC

ParkerE
Text Box
2636 Wait Ave, Wake Forest, NC

ParkerE
Text Box
27587

ParkerE
Text Box
1758468940

ParkerE
Text Box
Wallbrook CStore LLC

ParkerE
Text Box
801 East Boulevard, Charlotte, NC

ParkerE
Text Box
28203



 

WAKE COUNTY PIN NAME MAILING ADDRESS ZIP CODE 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

ParkerE
Text Box
1758563963

ParkerE
Text Box
Wallbrook Landco LLC

ParkerE
Text Box
3 Keel Street Suite 2, Wrightsville Beach

ParkerE
Text Box
28480

ParkerE
Text Box
1758465891

ParkerE
Text Box
Wallbrook Landco LLC

ParkerE
Text Box
3 Keel Street Suite 2, Wrightsville Beach

ParkerE
Text Box
28480



230 E. Peterson Drive, Suite B   Charlotte, NC  28217 | 980.312.5450 | seamonwhiteside.com 

March 27, 2024 

Town of Rolesville 

Planning Department 

PO Box 250 

Rolesville, NC 27571 

(919) 554-6517

Statement of Justification 

Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning) Application 

See below for responses the Town of Rolesville zoning map amendment (rezoning) review standards for 

PIN 1758479244. 

1. Is the application consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Community Transportation Plan,

Bicycle and Greenway Plans, and any other adopted Town policy plans?

Yes – the application aligns with all of Town of Rolesville’s development goals. This project will

enhance pedestrian and bicycle traffic with the construction of a greenway to connect adjacent

developments and neighborhoods. A diverse landscape plan is also proposed as part of this

project which will enhance the aesthetic of the new Main Street area.

2. Is the application in conflict with any provision of the LDO or the Town Code of Ordinances?

No – the application is not in conflict with any provision of LDO or Town Code of Ordinances.

3. Does the application correct any errors in the existing zoning present at the time it was

adopted?

No – application corrects no errors in existing zoning.

4. Does the rezoning allow uses that are compatible with existing and permitted uses on

surrounding land/properties?

Several other adjacent properties are currently zoned as General Commercial. As of early 2021,

many of these properties were zoned as General Industrial.  A carwash is listed as a permitted

use under General Commercial per LDO Table 5.1. Both adjacent properties are currently zoned

general commercial. The existing Tire & Auto store on the property to the northeast (PIN

1758571481) is a vehicular centered commercial use. The proposed gas station development

currently under review (SDP-23-04) on the property to the southwest (PIN 1758467822) of our

site is also vehicular centered commercial use. We believe a carwash, a vehicular centered

commercial use, would be compatible with the adjacent existing and proposed developments.

5. Would the application ensure efficient development within the Town, including the capacity and

safety of the street network, public facilities, and other similar considerations?

Yes – the goal of undergoing Main Street Project is to encourage new development while

providing an adequate and safe transportation network. City of Raleigh Utilities has sufficient

capacity for the water and sewer demand for the proposed development. The proposed

sidewalks and greenway will provide cohesive ADA pedestrian access to surrounding

developments.

ATTACHMENT 5 -- REZ-24-03



 

230 E. Peterson Drive, Suite B   Charlotte, NC  28217 | 980.312.5450 | seamonwhiteside.com 

 

6. Would the application result in a logical and orderly development pattern?  

Yes – the project would allow access to several other commercial developments via a proposed 

cross access road connecting Grand Park Drive and proposed Virginia Water Drive (SDP-23-04) . 

This would allow access to several commercial developments while bypassing S Main Street.  

 

7. Would the application result in adverse impacts on water, air, noise, storm water management, 

wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, and the natural functioning of the environment? 

The application would cause no adverse effects to the functionality of the existing environment. 

A large amount of unmanicured vegetation would have to be removed, however a biodiverse 

and aesthetically pleasing landscape plan is proposed. Stormwater will be managed according to 

the Wake County Stormwater Design Manual to ensure there is no degradation in water quality 

or to the surrounding environment. There are no existing wetlands on the property. 

 

8. If a Conditional district providing proposed Conditions of Approval, do they address and mitigate 

the impacts reasonably expected to be generated by the development or use of the property, 

can they reasonably be implemented, and can they be enforced for the subject property, and 

will they result in no greater impact on adjacent properties or the community at large than 

would be expected to occur by the permitted uses and the minimum development standards of 

the corresponding General zoning district. 

No conditional zoning district proposed. 

 

 

Thank you for your assistance. 

 

SEAMON, WHITESIDE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

 

Clinton B. McConnaughey-Cohens, Jr. 

CMCConnaughey-Cohens@SeamonWhiteside.com 

(980) 312-5450 ext. 303 

 

 

cc: Trey Little 

 Parker Evans 

 10772 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment 6







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
After Recording Mail to: Town of Rolesville 

 P. O. Box 250 
   Rolesville, NC  27571 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
OF THE TOWN OF ROLESVILLE UNDER THE 

AUTHORITY GRANTED BY PART 1, ARTICLE 4A 
CHAPTER 160A OF THE GENERAL STATUTES OF NORTH CAROLINA 

 
ORDINANCE 2024-O-11 

CASE ANX-24-03 - PIN 1758479244 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Commissioners for the Town of Rolesville, North Carolina 
has adopted a resolution under G.S. 160A-31 stating its intent to annex the area described below; and 
 

WHEREAS, the petition has been certified by the Town Clerk as to its sufficiency of meeting G.S. 
160A-31; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of this annexation was held in the Town Board Room 
at Rolesville Town Hall located at 502 Southtown Circle, Rolesville, NC 27571 at 7:00 pm or thereafter 
on August 06, 2024 after due notice; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Commissioners finds that the proposed annexation meets the 
requirements of G.S. 160A-31; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Board of Commissioners of the Town 
of Rolesville, North Carolina that: 
 
 Section 1.  By the authority granted by G.S. 160A-31, the following described contiguous property 
owned by Grand Park, LLC is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Rolesville effective as of 
August 06, 2024: 
 
All that certain real property situated in the Town of Rolesville, Wake Forest Township, Wake County, 
North Carolina, described as follows: 
 

Beginning at a r/w disc found at the intersection of the north western right-of-way US Hwy 401/ 
Louisburg Rd. and the southern right-of-way of Grand Park Drive; thence with said right-of-way 
of US Hwy 401 the following calls: S 36°52'07" W a distance of 103.00' to a point; thence S 
42°44'47" W a distance of 181.98' to a point; thence leaving said right-of-way N 53°29'08" W a 
distance of 257.30' to a point; thence N 53°29'08" W a distance of 236.41' to a point; thence N 
32°01'38" E a distance of 415.31' to a 1/2" open top found; thence S 24°14'53" E a distance of 



190.24' to a 5/8" rebar found along the southern right-of-way of Grand Park Drive; thence with 
said right-of-way the following calls: along a curve turning to the left with an arc length of 
169.77', with a radius of 50.00', with a chord bearing of S 31°42'55" E, with a chord length of 
99.20' to a point; thence with a reverse curve turning to the right with an arc length of 18.76', 
with a radius of 25.01', with a chord bearing of N 72°31'43" E, with a chord length of 18.33' to a 
point; thence with a compound curve turning to the right with an arc length of 9.87', with a 
radius of 25.01', with a chord bearing of S 74°40'57" E, with a chord length of 9.80 to a point; 
thence with a compound curve turning to the right with an arc length of 97.34', with a radius of 
570.00', with a chord bearing of S 58°23'28" E, with a chord length of 97.22' to a point; thence S 
53°13'37" E a distance of 154.73' to a r/w disc found; thence S 03°49'14" W a distance of 31.39' 
to a r/wdisc found, said disc being The Point of Beginning. 
 
Said Parcel having an area of 164568.32 square feet, 3.778 acres 
 

 Section 2.  That the Mayor and Board of Commissioners directs a duly certified copy of this 
ordinance and annexation boundary map be submitted for filing to the Office of the Register of Deeds of 
Wake County and the Office of the Secretary of the State of North Carolina. 
  
 Adopted this 6th day of August, 2024. 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Ronnie I. Currin 
      Town of Rolesville Mayor 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I, Robin E. Peyton, Town Clerk for the Town of Rolesville, North Carolina, do hereby certify the foregoing 
to be a true copy of an Ordinance duly adopted at the meeting of the Town Board of Commissioners held 
on this 6th day of August, 2024. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Robin E. Peyton 
Town Clerk 



Attachment 8

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image

ParkerE
Image





ParkerE
Rectangle

ParkerE
Rectangle

ParkerE
Text Box
Annexation

ParkerE
Text Box
Petition

ParkerE
Text Box
Application (ANX-24-03)









All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Rolesville, Wake County North Carolina and being more 

particularly described as follows; 

 

Beginning at a r/w disc found at the intersection of the north western right-of-way US Hwy 401/ 

Louisburg Rd. and the southern right-of-way of Grand Park Drive; thence with said right-of-way of US 

Hwy 401 the following calls: S 36°52'07" W a distance of 103.00' to a point; thence S 42°44'47" W a 

distance of 181.98' to a point; thence leaving said right-of-way N 53°29'08" W a distance of 257.30' to a 

point; thence N 53°29'08" W a distance of 236.41' to a point; thence N 32°01'38" E a distance of 415.31' 

to a 1/2" open top found; thence S 24°14'53" E a distance of 190.24' to a 5/8" rebar found along the 

southern right-of-way of Grand Park Drive; thence with said right-of-way the following calls: along a 

curve turning to the left with an arc length of 169.77', with a radius of 50.00', with a chord bearing of S 

31°42'55" E, with a chord length of 99.20' to a point; thence with a reverse curve turning to the right 

with an arc length of 18.76', with a radius of 25.01', with a chord bearing of N 72°31'43" E, with a chord 

length of 18.33' to a point; thence with a compound curve turning to the right with an arc length of 

9.87', with a radius of 25.01', with a chord bearing of S 74°40'57" E, with a chord length of 9.80 to a 

point; thence with a compound curve turning to the right with an arc length of 97.34', with a radius of 

570.00', with a chord bearing of S 58°23'28" E, with a chord length of 97.22' to a point; thence S 

53°13'37" E a distance of 154.73' to a r/w disc found; thence S 03°49'14" W a distance of 31.39' to a r/w 

disc found, said disc being The Point of Beginning. 

 

Said Parcel having an area of 164568.32 square feet, 3.778 acres 

 

ANX-24-03 
2024.05.01



AN
X-24-03

2024.05.01

Michele Raby
Rectangle



 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-O-12  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWN OF 
ROLESVILLE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE 

TOWN OF ROLESVILLE TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 3.778 
ACRES LOCATED AT  0 SOUTH MAIN STREET, BEING WAKE COUNTY TAX 
PIN 1758479244 FROM A GENERAL INDUSTRIAL CONDITIONAL ZONING 

DISTRICT (GI-CZ) TO A GENERAL COMMERCIAL CONDITIONAL ZONING 
DISTRICT (GC-CZ)  

 
REZ-2024-03 - PIN 1758479244 

 
WHEREAS, the application submitted by Grand Park Properties LLC for the rezoning 
of land hereinafter described was duly filed with the Planning Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Board was presented the application for Recommendation on 
May 28, 2024, and the Board of Commissioners held a Legislative hearing on August 06, 
2024; and 

 
WHEREAS, mailed notices and property sign postings were carried out in advance of 
the Legislative hearing pursuant to G.S. § 160D-602 and the Land Development 
Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Board submitted its recommendation to the Board of 
Commissioners recommending approval of said application that was generally 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan for the lands hereinafter described, all in 
accordance with the requirements of the Town of Rolesville Land Development 
Ordinance and the provisions of Chapter 160D, Article 6, of the North Carolina General 
Statutes;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town 
of Rolesville, North Carolina: 
 
Section 1: The lands that are the subject of the Ordinance are those certain lands described 
in Exhibit 1 – Legal Description, which is incorporated herein by reference, and said lands 
are hereafter referred to as the “Rezoned Lands.” 
 
Section 2: The parcel identified by the Wake County Tax Parcel Identification Number 
1758479244, and described in Exhibit 1, are located within the Town’s Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction. 
 
Section 3: The Town of Rolesville Land Development Ordinance, including the Town of 
Rolesville North Carolina Official Zoning District Map, which is a part of said Ordinance, 
is hereby amended by changing the zoning classification of the “Rezoned Lands” from 
General Industrial Conditional Zoning (GI-CZ) to General Commercial Conditional 
Zoning (GC-CZ) as shown on Exhibit 2, subject to the conditions stated herein.  
 
Section 4: The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to all of the standards and conditions in 
Exhibit 3, Conditions of Approval, which are voluntarily proposed as part of this 
rezoning. 
 
Section 5:  The Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to cause the said Official 
Zoning District Map for the Town of Rolesville, North Carolina, to be physically revised 
and amended to reflect the zoning changes ordained by this Ordinance. 



 
 

 
Section 6: After reviewing all the information presented at the Legislative hearing and 
the Town of Rolesville plans, policies and ordinances, the Rolesville Board of 
Commissioners find the Rezoning map amendment request reasonable and consistent 
with the 2017 Comprehensive Plan and is in the interest of the public and adopted a 
Consistency Statement. 
 
Section 7: The “Rezoned Lands” are subject to the following conditions, which are 
voluntary imposed as part of this Rezoning: 
 
Conditions of Approval: 
 

1. The subject property, Wake County Pin 1758479244, shall exclude or Prohibit the 
development/establishment of the following Zoning Specific uses listed as either 
Permitted or Special Uses within the General Commercial Zoning District per 
Land Development Ordinance Table 5.1. Permitted Principal Use Table: 
- School (K-12) 
- Bars and Nightclubs 
- Gas Station 
- Vehicle, Rental and Sales 
- Vehicle, Minor Service 
- Funeral Home 
- Tattoo Establishment 
- Water Storage Tower 
- Telecommunications Tower 

 
Section 8: The “Rezoned Lands” shall be perpetually bound to the Conditions imposed 
including the uses authorized, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for 
in the Land Development Ordinance.  

 
Adopted and effective this the 06 day of August 2024 .     

  
  

 
 ____________________________________ 
 Ronnie I. Currin 
 Mayor 
  

ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________  __________________________________ 
Robin Peyton     David J. Neill 
Town Clerk     Town Attorney 
 



A
TT

A
C

H
M

EN
T 

10



EXHIBIT 

REZ-24-03 / PIN 

1758479244 Conditions of 

Approval May 17, 2024 

1. The subject property, Wake County Pin 1758479244, shall exclude or Prohibit
the development/establishment of the following Zoning Specific uses listed as
either Permitted or Special Uses within the General Commercial Zoning
District per Land Development Ordinance Table 5.1. Permitted Principal Use
Table:

- School (K-12)

- Bars and Nightclubs

- Gas Station

- Vehicle, Rental and Sales

- Vehicle, Minor Service

- Funeral Home

- Tattoo Establishment

- Water Storage Tower

- Telecommunications Tower

Attachment_10



 

 
TA-24-01 

Memo 
To:  Mayor Currin and Town Board of Commissioners 

From:  Meredith Gruber, Planning Director 

Date:  August 1, 2024 

Re: TA-24-01 Land Development Ordinance (LDO) Amendments to Table 3.1.3. 
Residential High Development Standards, Table 6.4.3.G. Off-Street Parking 
Requirements, and Chapter 11 Definitions 

 

Background 

In January 2024, an application was received from Barbara Todd of American Engineering 
Associates, on behalf of Michael Fleming of BRD Land and Investment, to amend the Town of 
Rolesville’s Land Development Ordinance (LDO) to allow 4,000 square foot lots for age 
restricted single family detached residential development and 1,900 square foot lots for age 
restricted single family attached residential development.  The applicant is also requesting guest 
parking not be required for age restricted single family attached residential development.  As per 
the Planning Board’s suggestion, staff has added a definition of Age Restricted Residential 
Development to complete this text amendment package. 

 
Proposed Text Amendments 

The proposed text amendments for Table 3.1.3. Residential High Development Standards, 
Tabel 6.4.3.G. Off-Street Parking Requirements, and Chapter 11 Definitions follow on the next 
three pages of this staff report.  Proposed text is shown in blue and underlined, and deletions 
are shown in red strikethrough.  Ordinance # 2024-O-39 is included as an attachment; it also 
includes the proposed text amendments for case TA-24-01. 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

Table 3.1.3. Residential High Development Standards 
  

STANDARDS RESIDENTIAL HIGH (RH) REQUIREMENTS 
Building Height Max. 35’ 

Density 

Max: 6 Dwelling Units Per acre (Single Family Detached) 

Max 8: Dwelling Units Per Acres (Age Restricted) 

Max:9 Dwelling Units Per Acre (Attached) 

Max:12 Dwelling Units Per Acre (Multi Family) 

 
Single 
Family 

Detached 

Single 
Family 

Detached 
(Age 

Restricted) 

Attached 
Attached 

(Age 
Restricted) 

Multiple 
Family 

 
 
Building 
Setback 
(Min./Max.) 

Front 15’ 15’ 15’ 15’ 20’ 

Side 10’ 
10’ 

Aggregate 

0’ Internal 
10’ End 

Unit 
Min. 30’ 
Between 
structures 

0’ Internal 
5’ End Unit 

Min. 16’ 
Between 

structures 
Min. 10’ 
Between 
two unit 

structures 

15’ 

Rear 15’ 
Corner 15’ 15’ 15’ 15’ 20’ 

Lot 

Width 
(Min) 

75’ (Single Family Detached) 

40’ (Single Family Detached Age Restricted) 

20’ (Attached) 

Coverage N/A 

Area 
(Min.) 

7,500 (Single Family Detached) 
4,000 Square Feet (Single Family Detached Age Restricted) 

2,000 Square Feet (Attached) 
1,900 Square Feet (Attached Age Restricted) 

Special Standards 

No more than 15 gross acres may be assigned to attached or multiple 
family uses. This acreage limit shall be applied to the total of all attached 
and multifamily uses within a subdivision.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
the acreage limit may be divided within and/or distributed throughout a 
subdivision.  There is no limitation for age restricted residential 
developments. 



3 
 

In addition to the applicant’s request to have no guest parking requirement for single family 
attached age restricted residential development, staff has included some minor clarifications in 
the entire Off-Street Parking Requirements, Table 6.4.3.G. 
 
6.4.3. OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
 

C. Required Off-Street Parking. Required off-street parking is defined in Table 6.4.3.G. 
For example, under the “Minimum Required” column, “1.0/ per Dwelling Unit” shall be 
understood to mean at minimum one parking space per dwelling unit is required. Under 
the “Maximum Allowed” column, “2.0/ per Dwelling Unit” shall be understood to mean 
two parking spaces per dwelling unit are allowed as a maximum. 

 
Table 6.4.3.G. Off-Street Parking Requirements 
 

ROLESVILLE OFF -STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

PRINCIPAL USES MINIMUM REQUIRED MAXIMUM ALLOWED 
ADDITIONAL 

NOTES 
RESIDENTIAL USES  

Dwelling, Single Family, 
Attached  

2.0/ per Dwelling Unit 
Plus 0.25 Guest 
Spaces/ per Dwelling  
 

No Maximum 

Exclusive of garage, 
which shall not be 
included in minimum 
and maximum. There 
is no guest parking 
requirement for age 
restricted 
residential 
developments. 

Dwelling, Multiple Family  

1.5/ per Dwelling Unit 
Plus 0.10 Guest 
Spaces/ per Dwelling 
Unit  

2.5/ per Dwelling Unit 

A maximum of 10% 
additional guest 
parking of total 
parking count may be 
permitted.  

Dwelling, Upperstory 
Unit  

1.0/ per Dwelling Unit  2.0/ per Dwelling Unit   

Live-Work Unit  0.75/ per Dwelling Unit  1.75/ per Dwelling Unit   
Residential Care (ALF, 
ILF, CCF)  

0.25/ per Bed  1.0/ per Bed   

CIVIC USES 

Assembly/Church 
1.0 per 4.0 seats in the 
principal assembly 
room 

2.0 per 4.0 seats in the 
principal assembly 
room 

 

Day Care 2.5/ per 1,000 SF 5.0/ per 1,000 SF  
Government Office 2.5/ per 1,000 SF 5.0/ per 1,000 SF  

Parks/Public Recreation 
Facilities 

3.0 Per Gross Acre 
Plus 1.0 Per 1,000 SF 
of Gross Floor Area of 
Buildings 

No Maximum  

Schools (K-12) 
1.0 per 5.0 seats in the 
principal assembly 
room 

2.0 per 5.0 seats in the 
principal assembly 
room 

Minimum parking for 
schools shall be 
consistent with 



4 
 

Wake County 
Standards  

COMMERCIAL USES 
Bank 2.5/ per 1,000 SF 6.0/ per 1,000 SF   

Eating Establishment 2.5/ per 1,000 SF 10.0/ per 1,000 SF 
Outdoor seating 
shall be included in 
square footage. 

Lodging 0.5/ per Room 2.5/ per Room   
Recreation, Indoor 4.0/ per 1,000 SF 10.0/ per 1,000 SF   

Recreation, Outdoor 

5.0 Per Gross Acre 
Plus 1.0 Per 1,000 SF 
of Gross Floor Area of 
Buildings 

10.0 Per Gross Acre 
Plus 1.0 Per 1,000 SF 
of Gross Floor Area of 
Buildings 

  

Retail Sales and 
Services 

2.5/ per 1,000 SF 7.5/ per 1,000 SF 

Shopping centers 
will be based on an 
aggregate of square 
feet, not uses, to 
determine required 
parking.  

Vehicle, Rental and 
Sales 

1.0/ per 1,000 SF of 
Gross Floor Area of 
Buildings Plus 1.0 Per 
10,000 SF of Outdoor 
Display Area 

3.0/ per 1,000 SF of 
Gross Floor Area of 
Buildings Plus 1.0 Per 
10,000 SF of Outdoor 
Display Area 

  

OFFICE AND MEDICAL 
Hospital 2.0/ per Hospital Bed 5.0/ per Hospital Bed  
Medical Facility 2.0/ per 1,000 SF 5.0/ per 1,000 SF  
Professional Office  2.0/ per 1,000 SF 5.0/ per 1,000 SF  
INDUSTRIAL USES 
Industrial, Light 0.5/ per 1,000 SF 2.0/ per 1,000 SF  
Warehousing 0.5/ per 1,000 SF 2.0/ per 1,000 SF  
Wholesale Trade 0.5/ per 1,000 SF 2.0/ per 1,000 SF  

 
 
Section 11.7. Definitions 
 
Age Restricted Residential Development : An age-restricted residential development is 
any housing type that qualifies for an exemption as “Housing for Older Persons” under 
the Federal Fair Housing Amendment Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C. 3607(B). 

 
Planning Board Recommendation 

At their June 24, 2024 meeting, the Planning Board unanimously recommended approval of TA-
24-01 with a vote of 5 – 0 (1 absence, 1 vacancy).  The Board noted that a definition of age 
restricted housing should be added to the amendment request. 

 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of TA-24-01.  The text amendment aligns with the Town of 
Rolesville’s Strategic Plan Objective 3.5 - Encourage long-range planning to address growth 



5 
 

concerns related to the watershed, diverse housing, traffic, and the environment.  The provision 
of development standards to allow smaller lots for age restricted housing adds to development 
opportunities for diverse housing needs. 

 
Proposed Motion 

Motion to (approve or deny) TA-24-01 LDO Amendments to Table 3.1.3. Residential High 
Development Standards, Table 6.4.3.G. Off-Street Parking Requirements, and Chapter 11 
Definitions 

 
Attachment 

Ordinance # 2024-O-39 



 PROPOSAL TO AMEND 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE, 

TOWN OF ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 
Case Number TA-24-01 RH Zoning District/Off-Street Parking/Definition(s) 

Ordinance # 2024-O-39 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Rolesville has received a petition to amend the Land Development 
Ordinance Table 3.1.3. Residential High Development Standard, Table 6.4.3.G. Off-Street 
Parking Requirements, and Section 11 Definitions. 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute Section NC Chapter § 160D-702.  (Effective 
until January 1, 2025) Grant of power; (a) A local government may adopt zoning 
regulations. Except as provided in subsections (b) and (c) of this section, a zoning regulation 
may regulate and restrict the height, number of stories, and size of buildings and other 
structures; the percentage of lots that may be occupied; the size of yards, courts, and other 
open spaces; the density of population; the location and use of buildings, structures, and 
land.  
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Rolesville Board of Commissioners firmly believes that it is in 
the public interest to amend the Town’s Land Development Ordinance described below. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWN OF ROLESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA: 

 
 

SECTION 1. That Section 3.1.3. Residential High Development Standards be 
amended to read as follows: 
 
                              Addition (additions are underlined) 

Deletion (deletions are struck through) 
Alteration (additions are underlined and deletions are struck through) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Table 3.1.3. RH Development Standards 

 

STANDARDS RESIDENTIAL HIGH (RH) REQUIREMENTS 
Building Height Max. 35’ 

Density 

Max: 6 Dwelling Units Per acre (Single Family Detached) 

Max 8: Dwelling Units Per Acres (Age Restricted) 

Max:9 Dwelling Units Per Acre (Attached) 

Max:12 Dwelling Units Per Acre (Multi Family) 

 
Single 
Family 

Detached 

Single Family 
Detached 

(Age 
Restricted) 

Attached 
Attached 

(Age 
Restricted) 

Multiple 
Family 

 
 
Building 
Setback 
(Min./Max.) 

Front 15’ 15’ 15’ 15’ 20’ 

Side 10’ 10’ Aggregate 

0’ Internal 
10’ End Unit 

Min. 30’ 
Between 
structures 

0’ Internal 
5’ End Unit 

Min. 16’ 
Between 

structures 
Min. 10’ 

Between two 
unit 

structures 

15’ 

Rear 15’ 
Corner 15’ 15’ 15’ 15’ 20’ 

Lot 

Width 
(Min) 

75’ (Single Family Detached) 

40’ (Single Family Detached Age Restricted) 

20’ (Attached) 

Coverage N/A 

Area 
(Min.) 

7,500 (Single Family Detached) 
4,000 Square Feet (Single Family Detached Age Restricted) 

2,000 Square Feet (Attached) 
1,900 Square Feet (Attached Age Restricted) 

Special Standards 

No more than 15 gross acres may be assigned to attached or multiple family 
uses. This acreage limit shall be applied to the total of all attached and 
multifamily uses within a subdivision.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
acreage limit may be divided within and/or distributed throughout a subdivision.  
There is no limitation for age restricted residential developments. 



SECTION 2. That Section 6.4.G. Off-Street Parking Requirements be amended to 

read as follows: 

 Addition  
 Deletion (deletions are struck through) 

Alteration (additions are underlined and deletions are struck through) 
 

Table 6.4.3.G. Off-Street Parking Requirements 
 

C. Required Off-Street Parking. Required off-street parking is defined in Table 
6.4.3.G. For example, under the “Minimum Required” column, “1.0/ per Dwelling 
Unit” shall be understood to mean at minimum one parking space per dwelling unit 
is required. Under the “Maximum Allowed” column, “2.0/ per Dwelling Unit” 
shall be understood to mean two parking spaces per dwelling unit are allowed as a 
maximum. 

 
Table 6.4.3.G. Off-Street Parking Requirements 
 

ROLESVILLE OFF -STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

PRINCIPAL USES 
MINIMUM 
REQUIRED 

MAXIMUM 
ALLOWED 

ADDITIONAL 
NOTES 

RESIDENTIAL USES  

Dwelling, Single Family, 
Attached  

2.0/ per Dwelling Unit 
Plus 0.25 Guest Spaces/ 
per Dwelling  
 

No Maximum 

Exclusive of garage, 
which shall not be 
included in minimum 
and maximum. There 
is no guest parking 
requirement for age 
restricted residential 
developments. 

Dwelling, Multiple Family  
1.5/ per Dwelling Unit 
Plus 0.10 Guest Spaces/ 
per Dwelling Unit  

2.5/ per Dwelling Unit 

A maximum of 10% 
additional guest 
parking of total parking 
count may be 
permitted.  

Dwelling, Upperstory Unit  1.0/ per Dwelling Unit  2.0/ per Dwelling Unit   
Live-Work Unit  0.75/ per Dwelling Unit  1.75/ per Dwelling Unit   
Residential Care (ALF, 
ILF, CCF)  

0.25/ per Bed  1.0/ per Bed   

CIVIC USES 

Assembly/Church 
1.0 per 4.0 seats in the 
principal assembly room 

2.0 per 4.0 seats in the 
principal assembly room 

 

Day Care 2.5/ per 1,000 SF 5.0/ per 1,000 SF  
Government Office 2.5/ per 1,000 SF 5.0/ per 1,000 SF  

Parks/Public Recreation 
Facilities 

3.0 Per Gross Acre Plus 
1.0 Per 1,000 SF of Gross 
Floor Area of Buildings 

No Maximum  

Schools (K-12) 
1.0 per 5.0 seats in the 
principal assembly room 

2.0 per 5.0 seats in the 
principal assembly room 

Minimum parking for 
schools shall be 



consistent with Wake 
County Standards  

COMMERCIAL USES 
Bank 2.5/ per 1,000 SF 6.0/ per 1,000 SF   

Eating Establishment 2.5/ per 1,000 SF 10.0/ per 1,000 SF 
Outdoor seating shall 
be included in square 
footage. 

Lodging 0.5/ per Room 2.5/ per Room   
Recreation, Indoor 4.0/ per 1,000 SF 10.0/ per 1,000 SF   

Recreation, Outdoor 
5.0 Per Gross Acre Plus 
1.0 Per 1,000 SF of Gross 
Floor Area of Buildings 

10.0 Per Gross Acre Plus 
1.0 Per 1,000 SF of Gross 
Floor Area of Buildings 

  

Retail Sales and Services 2.5/ per 1,000 SF 7.5/ per 1,000 SF 

Shopping centers will 
be based on an 
aggregate of square 
feet, not uses, to 
determine required 
parking.  

Vehicle, Rental and Sales 

1.0/ per 1,000 SF of 
Gross Floor Area of 
Buildings Plus 1.0 Per 
10,000 SF of Outdoor 
Display Area 

3.0/ per 1,000 SF of 
Gross Floor Area of 
Buildings Plus 1.0 Per 
10,000 SF of Outdoor 
Display Area 

  

OFFICE AND MEDICAL 
Hospital 2.0/ per Hospital Bed 5.0/ per Hospital Bed  
Medical Facility 2.0/ per 1,000 SF 5.0/ per 1,000 SF  
Professional Office  2.0/ per 1,000 SF 5.0/ per 1,000 SF  
INDUSTRIAL USES 
Industrial, Light 0.5/ per 1,000 SF 2.0/ per 1,000 SF  
Warehousing 0.5/ per 1,000 SF 2.0/ per 1,000 SF  
Wholesale Trade 0.5/ per 1,000 SF 2.0/ per 1,000 SF  

 
 
SECTION 3. That Section 11.7 Definitions be amended to read as follows: 
 

 Addition (additions are underlined) 
Deletion (deletions are struck through) 
Alteration (additions are underlined and deletions are struck through) 

 
Section 11.7. Definitions 
 
Age Restricted Residential Development : An age-restricted residential development is 
any housing type that qualifies for an exemption as “Housing for Older Persons” 
under the Federal Fair Housing Amendment Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C. 3607(B). 
 
 
 
 



SECTION 4. That all laws and clauses of law in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of said conflict. 
 
SECTION 5. That if this ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is 
held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this ordinance which can be 
given separate effect and to the end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 
 
SECTION 6.  That this ordinance has been adopted following a duly advertised legislative 
hearing of the Town Council and following review and recommendation by the Planning 
Board. 
 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall be enforced as provided in the Town of Rolesville’s 
Land Development Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 8. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective on the date of its 
adoption by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
Adopted this 06 day of August 2024 by the Town of Rolesville Board of Commissioners. 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Ronnie I. Currin 
      Town of Rolesville Mayor 
  



CERTIFICATION 
 
 
I, ______________________, Town Clerk for the Town of Rolesville, North Carolina, do 
hereby certify the foregoing to be a true copy of an ordinance duly adopted at the meeting 
of the Town Board of Commissioners held on this ___ day of ____________________, 
2024. 
 
In witness whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the Town of 
Rolesville to be affixed this ___ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
      Robin Peyton 
(seal)      Town Clerk 



 

Town of Rolesville 
PO Box 250 / Rolesville, North Carolina 27571 / RolesvilleNC.gov / 919.556.3506 

Memorandum 
To: Mayor and Town Board 
From: Eddie Henderson, Parks Superintendent 
Date: July 31, 2024 
Re: Farm Park Entrance Project – Bid Acceptance  

Background 

In order to begin the process of providing access to the Farm Park for public use and future 
construction, the Town has undertaken an effort to construct turn lanes into the park from Louisburg 
Road and a gravel road driveway that runs through the park.  
 

Bids 

This project was advertised for bid on June 6, 2024, with anticipated bid opening of July 23. 7 sealed 
bids were received: 
 

CONTRACTOR TOTAL BID 
Cardinal Civil Contracting, LLC $778,763.00 
H.G. Reynolds Co., Inc. $942,000.00 
Fred Smith Company $1,100,000.00 
Lanier Construction Co., Inc. $1,113,706.70 
Triangle Grading & Paving, Inc. $1,396,000.00 
Carolina Sunrock, LLC $1,458,404.00 
Bar Construction Company, Inc. $1,680,000.00 

The Town’s civil engineering consultant for this project, McAdams, recommends that the Town accept 
the bids and award the contract to the lowest responsible responsive bidder, Cardinal Civil Contracting 
for $778.763.00. Staff agree with this recommendation.  

The Board of Commissioners has already appropriated $1,550,000 for this project. Staff estimate that 
sufficient funds are in place to complete this portion of the project and plan on setting aside 25 percent 
of the bid total as a contingency fund with the remaining funds.  

 

 REVENUES 
Budgeted amount                  $1,550,00
  
 
EXPENDITURES 
Project to date                          $110,522 
 
Construction    $778,763 
CEI     $150,000 
Construction admin    $30,000 
Contingency    $200,000 
 
Total Expected Expenditures  $1,269,286 
 
 



2024-R- 19  

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING BIDS AND AWARDING THE CONTRACT FOR THE 
Farm Park Entrance Road Project 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with NCGS 143-128, beginning June 6, 2024, the Town of 
Rolesville solicited formal bids by advertisement on the websites for the Town or Rolesville, NC 
Department of Administration Historically Underutilized Businesses, and NC Department of 
Administration Interactive Purchasing System; and  
 
WHEREAS, 7 bids were received on the initial bid opening date of July 23, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, the following bids were received and opened on June 23, 2024: 
 

CONTRACTOR TOTAL BID 
Cardinal Civil Contracting, LLC $778,763.00 
H.G. Reynolds Co., Inc. $942,000.00 
Fred Smith Company $1,100,000.00 
Lanier Construction Co., Inc. $1,113,706.70 
Triangle Grading & Paving, Inc. $1,396,000.00 
Carolina Sunrock, LLC $1,458,404.00 
Bar Construction Company, Inc. $1,680,000.00 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town of Rolesville Mayor and Board of 
Commissioners, 
 
Section 1.  That the Town accepts the bids and awards the contract to the lowest responsible 
responsive bidder, Cardinal Civil Contracting, LLC, in the amount of $778763 for the Farm Park 
Entrance Road Project.  
 
Section 2.  That the Town Manager is hereby authorized to execute the contract with Cardinal 
Civil Contracting, LLC and other documents as may be required.  
 
 
 
Adopted this August 6th, 2024. 
 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Ronnie I. Currin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Robin E. Peyton, Town Clerk 



 

 

 

115166252.v2 

 M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: Mayor and Town Commissioners 

FROM: David J. Neill, Town Attorney 

DATE: August 2, 2024 

RE: CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENT TO ROADWAY 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 
ROLESVILLE AND MITCHELL MILL ROAD INVESTORS, LLC 

Background. 

In March of 2021, the Town entered into a contract (the “Agreement”) to reimbursement 
private developer, Mitchel Mill Road Investors, LLC (“Mitchell Mill”) for Mitchell Mill’s actual 
costs incurred in the construction of certain improvements to Rolesville Road (the “Project”).  
These improvements go beyond normal frontage improvements that would be required as part of 
Mitchell Mill’s development of the Kalas Falls community. 

Agreements with private parties to reimburse them for public roadway improvements are 
authorized by North Carolina law and the Town Code. 

Increases in construction costs over the past three years have increased the Project cost 
considerably, thereby leaving the estimated reimbursable cost to Mitchell Mill higher than the 
Agreement’s cap on reimbursement authorized in the discretion of the town manager.  The 
currently authorized cap is $697,039.00.  The latest engineer’s estimate derived from the received 
construction bid places the Town’s share of this Project work at $883,686.42.  

Pursuant to the Agreement, reimbursable costs are reimbursed to Mitchell Mill in the form 
of ongoing credits against development fees that would otherwise be paid with permitting. 

The Proposed Contract Amendment. 

 The enclosed First Amendment to Roadway Reimbursement Agreement increases the 
reimbursable credit cap to $1,104,496.34, representing 125% of the current engineer’s estimate.  
The proposed amendment also makes other technical updates to the Contract. 

Next Steps: 

This proposed amendment may be taken up by the Board of Commissioners at a regular 
meeting without specific public notice or a hearing. 



Proposed Action: 

In light of well-documented increases in construction costs and the limitation of the funding 
source to a credit against fees, the requested amendment is reasonable, and staff recommends 
approval. 

Possible form of a motion: 

• “I move adoption of the proposed ‘First Amendment to Roadway 
Reimbursement Agreement,’ and direct that the same be placed in final 
form by the town attorney and executed by the town manager.” 

 

Enclosures: 

1) Proposed First Amendment to Roadway Reimbursement Agreement. 
2) Roadway Reimbursement Agreement, March 2, 2021. 



110421650.v1 

 
PROPOSED 

 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO 

ROADWAY REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO ROADWAY REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (the 
“First Amendment”) is made and entered into by and between the TOWN OF ROLESVILLE, 
a North Carolina municipal corporation (“Town”) and MITCHELL MILL ROAD 
INVESTORS, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company (“Developer”; Town and 
Developer are collectively hereinafter, the “Parties”). 

W I T N E S S E T H :  

WHEREAS, Town and Developer did enter into that certain Roadway Reimbursement Agreement 
dated March 2, 2021 regarding the construction by Developer of certain Improvements to 
Rolesville Road in furtherance of Town’s interest in ensuring the safe movement of traffic in this 
area of Rolesville (the “Existing Agreement”; the Existing Agreement as amended by this First 
Amendment, the “Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, these Improvements to be constructed are in excess of what would otherwise be 
required as a construction obligation of Developer’s Development; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Agreement, Developer has solicited and received bids from 
contractors for construction of the Improvements in accordance with NC Gen. Stat. § 160A-309 
Article 8 of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the lowest, responsible, responsive bid (the “Bid”) exceeds the maximum possible 
Reimbursement Credit the Town’s manager is authorized to grant under the Agreement; and; 

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested that the Existing Agreement be amended to increase the 
maximum Reimbursement Credit cap to equal or exceed the Bid price; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has determined that the public cost of the requested amendment will not 
exceed the estimated cost of providing for such improvements through either eligible force account 
qualified labor or through a public contract let pursuant to Article 8 of Chapter 143 of the North 
Carolina General Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, at a regular meeting of the Town Board of Commissioners, by a ________________ 
vote, the Town did agree to amend the Existing Agreement to increase the maximum 
Reimbursement Credit cap. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING AGREEMENT. 



2 

110421650.v1 

A. The final sentence of Subsection 3.2.3 of the Existing Agreement is hereby deleted 
in its entirety and replaced with the following language: 

Notwithstanding the language of this Section 3 or 
any other provision of this Agreement to the 
contrary, under no circumstance shall the 
Reimbursement Credit exceed One Million One Hundred 
Four Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-six and 34/100 
Dollars ($1,104,496.34) (i.e. 125% of the estimate 
of Reimbursable Costs as shown on Exhibit D). 

B. Subsection 14.1 is hereby amended by removing the name “Kelly Arnold” and 
replacing the same with the name “Eric Marsh.” 

C. Exhibit C to the Existing Agreement (the Developer’s Estimated Project Costs) is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with that engineer’s estimate from 
American Engineering dated August 1, 2024 attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

D. Exhibit D to the Existing Agreement (the Town’s Estimated Project Costs”) is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with that engineer’s estimate from 
American Engineering dated August 1, 2024 attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

2. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Enforceability.  When duly executed and delivered by the Parties, this First 
Amendment and the Agreement constitute a legal, valid, and binding obligation and 
is enforceable against the Parties in accordance with its terms, and the Parties 
hereby ratify and affirm the Agreement as amended. 

B. Capitalized Terms.  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall 
have the meanings set forth in the Agreement. 

C. Governing Law.  This First Amendment shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the internal laws of the State of North Carolina without giving 
effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of 
North Carolina or any other jurisdiction). 

D. Continuing Effect.  Other than as expressly amended and supplemented hereby, the 
Agreement shall remain unchanged in full force and effect. 

E. Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be 
one and the same agreement.  A signed copy of this First Amendment, or executed 
counterpart signature pages of this First Amendment, delivered by fax, email in 
portable document format (pdf), or other electronic transmission intended to 
preserve the original graphic appearance of the document shall be deemed to have 
the same legal effect as delivery of an original, signed copy of this First 
Amendment.  Without limiting the foregoing, a copy of this First Amendment or 



3 

110421650.v1 

any other writing required under this First Amendment that is executed with an 
electronic signature as defined by the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (N.C. 
Gen. Stat. § 66-311 et seq.) shall be deemed as binding upon the maker as any 
signature or mark made by ink or otherwise. 

F. Date of this Amendment.  This First Amendment shall be effective upon the date 
of its completed execution by the Parties as determined conclusively from the later 
date of execution written beneath the Parties’ respective signature blocks. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

  



4 

110421650.v1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party has caused this First Amendment to be executed as of the 
dates indicated hereinbelow. 
 
 

“Developer” 
 
MITCHELL MILL ROAD INVESTORS, LLC 
 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title:       
Date:     
 
 
“Town” 
 
TOWN OF ROLESVILLE 
 
 
 
By:       
Name: Eric Marsh 
Title: Town Manager 
Date:     
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument has been pre-audited to the extent and in the manner required by the “Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.” 
 
 
 
       
Amy Stevens, Town Finance Director 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 875BC88G-6863-4874-9AC1-745301EAD865 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WAKE 

ROADWAY REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS ROADWAY REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into 
and made effective this 2nd day of March, 2021 (the "Effective Date") by and between the Town 
of Rolesville, a North Carolina municipal corporation ("Town"), and Mitchell Mill Road Investors 
LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company ("Developer"). The Town and 
Developer are sometimes referred to herein as a "party" individually and as the "parties" 
collectively. 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the Developer is the fee simple owner of the following parcels of real prope1iy 
( collectively, the "Property") which are subject to this Agreement: 

(i) that ce1iain tract of land located in the corporate limits of the Town and is fmiher
described by deeds recorded in Book 16997, Page 2212, Wake County Registry,
and having current Wake County Real Estate ID 0159110 and PIN 1767295866;

(ii) that certain tract of land located in the corporate limits of the Town and is fmiher
described by a deed recorded in Book 11940, Page 1155, Wake County Registry,
and having a current Wake County Real Estate ID 0007593 and PIN 1767178299;

(iii) that certain tract of land located in the corporate limits of the Town and is further
described by a deed recorded in Book 12007, Page 2228, Wake County Registry,
and having current Wake County Real Estate ID 0107995 and PIN 1767083228;

(iv) that certain tract of land located in the corporate limits of the Town and is fmiher
described by a deed recorded in Book 17691, Page 1863, Wake County Registry,
and having current Wake County Real Estate ID 0074674 and PIN 1757994300;

(v) that ce1iain tract of land located in the corporate limits of the Town and is fmiher
described by a deed recorded in Book 17691, Page 1867, Wake County Registry,
and having current Wake County Real Estate ID 0188955 and PIN 1768002153;
and

WHEREAS, a map of the Property is shown on EXHIBIT A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer wishes to develop the Property for residential purposes as part 
of a project known as "Kalas Falls" (the "Development") containing up to 550 residences in 
accordance with Town File SUP19-0l and that certain order titled Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law approved by the Town Board of Commissioners on January 7, 2020 (the 
"Order"); and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 160A, Section 309 of the North Carolina General Statutes authorizes 
North Carolina cities to enter into intersection and roadway improvement agreements with a 

1 





























5'

5'

12'

30'

SI
DE

W
AL

K

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
R.

O
.W

.

12'

RO
AD

 C
.L

.

12' 11'

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
E.

O
.P

.

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
E.

O
.P

.

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
E.

O
.P

.

AD
DI

TI
O

N
AL

PA
VE

M
EN

T 
AR

EA

AD
DI

TI
O

N
AL

PA
VE

M
EN

T 
AR

EA

6'

45'

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
R.

O
.W

. A
DD

IT
IO

N
 (+

/-
 0

.5
2 

AC
RE

S)

15'

+/- 7'

EX
IS

TI
N

G 
R.

O
.W

.

30'

1' SHOULDER

2.5'
CURB

&
GUTTER

20' DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

2

0

'
 
D

R

A

I
N

A

G

E

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

20' DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

2

0

'
 

D

R

A

I
N

A

G

E

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

D

R

A

I
N

A

G

E

 
E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

PROPOSED 30' COR 

UTILITY EASEMENT

ENTRY FEATURE

EASEMENT

ENTRY FEATURE
EASEMENT

PROPOSED 20' 

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

2

0

'
 
D

R

A

I
N

A

G

E

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

A
m

e
r
i
c
a
n
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n
g
 
A

s
s
o
c
i
a
t
e
s
 
-
 
S

o
u
t
h
e
a
s
t
,
 
P

.
A

.

4
0
2
0
 
W

e
s
t
c
h
a
s
e
 
B

o
u
l
e
v
a
r
d
,
 
S

u
i
t
e
 
4
5
0

R
a
l
e
i
g
h
,
 
N

C
 
2
7
6
0
7

9
1
9
-
4
6
9
-
1
1
0
1

A
M
E
R
I
C
A
N

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

 *** 3 Days Before Digging ***
North Carolina 811

811 or 1-800-632-4949
Remote Ticket Entry

http://nc811.org/remoteticketentry.htm

JOB NUMBER:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:            

CHECKED BY:           

PRELIMINARY

FOR INFORMATION, ONLY

Z:
\J

ob
s\

99
00

\W
at

ki
ns

 P
ro

pe
rt

y\
dw

g\
Te

m
po

ra
ry

\A
le

xi
s\

Ro
le

sv
ill

e 
Rd

 W
id

en
in

g_
12

-2
2-

20
 R

3.
dw

g

CROSS-SECTION
N.T.S

LAYOUT,
EXHIBIT &

CROSS-SECTION

℄

2.5'
CURB & GUTTER

+/- 7'
PROPOSED
PAVEMENT
ADDITION

22'
EXISTING

PAVEMENT

5'
PROPOSED
SIDEWALK

+/- 7'
PROPOSED
PAVEMENT
ADDITION

EXHIBIT

15'
PROPOSED

R.O.W.
ADDITION

60'
EXISTING
R.O.W.

ALP
01/20/2021

EXHIBIT A

ROLESVILLE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS
TOWN OF ROLESVILLE RESPONSIBLE FOR SIDEWALK & R.O.W. ADDITION ON WEST SIDE, PAVEMENT ON EAST SIDE

& ALL STRIPING
KALAS RESPONSIBLE FOR PAVEMENT ADDITION AND CURB & GUTTER ON WEST SIDE

ADDITIONAL PAVEMENT AREA
(DIMENSION WILL VARY) 5' SIDEWALK

12' TO
EXISTING
R.O.W.

EXHIBIT A
Map of Property

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875BC8B6-6863-4B74-9AC1-745301EAD865

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEELER, GINY F 

AutoCAD SHX Text
& BRIGHT, JILL F

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767483143

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEE, ERNEST LLOYD JR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767375272

AutoCAD SHX Text
PENNINA B. ROWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RACHEL K. ROWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: R-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.B. 15779, PG. 229

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN NO. 1767.01-37-4878

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAL ESTATE ID: 0045739

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRY, MICHAEL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES TERRY, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DONNA DARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767375046

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRABUCCO, ANTHONY J 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767364882

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUNTREE, EDWARD A JR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUNTREE, MARY M

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767365508

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOODY, MILDRED B

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767387170

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOODY, ELMO R 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767388313

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLARK, CHARLES T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLARK, PATRICIA H

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767389615

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLIEF, DWIGHT THOMAS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLIEF, CAROLYN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 176702580938

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLIEF, BETTY JOYCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767590335

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLIEF, DONNIE L

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODLIEF, PATSY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIN- 1767590716

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
R1-1 (30"x30")

AutoCAD SHX Text
W STREET SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE TO EXISTING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE TO EXISTING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
137

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' STREETSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' STREETSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' STREETSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' STREETSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' STREETSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' STREETSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
w

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIRBY HILL CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
27' B-B (50' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEBBLE GARDEN PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
27' B-B (50' ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
(

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
(

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
)

AutoCAD SHX Text
236

AutoCAD SHX Text
237

AutoCAD SHX Text
229

AutoCAD SHX Text
230

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NRB

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NRB

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' PERIMETER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE TO EXISTING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE TO EXISTING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STIPULATION FOR REUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING WAS PREPARED FOR USE ON THE SPECIFIC SITE, NAMED HEREON, CONTEMPORANEOUSLY WITH ITS ISSUE DATE AS LISTED, HEREON. AND IT IS NOT SUITABLE FOR USE ON A DIFFERENT PROJECT SITE OR AT A LATER TIME. USE OF THIS DRAWING FOR REFERENCE OR EXAMPLE ON ANOTHER PROJECT REQUIRES THE SERVICES OF PROPERLY LICENSED ARCHITECTS AND ENGINEERS. REPRODUCTION OF THIS DRAWING FOR REUSE ON ANOTHER PROJECT IS NOT AUTHORIZED AND MAY BE CONTRARY TO THE LAW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1832 ROLESVILLE ROAD WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KALAS FALLS ROLESVILLE RD WIDENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
240

AutoCAD SHX Text
360

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE        1"=120'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE        1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0



A
m

e
r
i
c
a

n
 
E

n
g

i
n

e
e

r
i
n

g
 
A

s
s
o

c
i
a

t
e

s
 
-
 
S

o
u

t
h

e
a

s
t
,
 
P

.
A

.

4
0

2
0

 
W

e
s
t
c
h

a
s
e

 
B

o
u

l
e

v
a

r
d

,
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
4

5
0

R
a

l
e

i
g

h
,
 
N

C
 
2

7
6

0
7

9
1

9
-
4

6
9

-
1

1
0

1

A
M
E
R
I
C
A
N

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

 *** 3 Days Before Digging ***
North Carolina 811

811 or 1-800-632-4949
Remote Ticket Entry

http://nc811.org/remoteticketentry.htm

JOB NUMBER:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:            

CHECKED BY:           

PRELIMINARY

FOR INFORMATION, ONLY

Z:
\J

ob
s\

99
00

\W
at

ki
ns

 P
ro

pe
rt

y\
dw

g\
Te

m
po

ra
ry

\A
le

xi
s\

Ro
le

sv
ill

e 
Rd

 W
id

en
in

g_
12

-2
2-

20
 R

3.
dw

g

ROLESVILLE RD
GAP

EXHIBIT

EXHIBIT B

TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION
N.T.S

℄

2.5'
CURB &
GUTTER +/- 7'

PROPOSED
PAVEMENT
ADDITION

+/- 22'
EXISTING

PAVEMENT

5'
PROPOSED
SIDEWALK

+/- 7'
PROPOSED
PAVEMENT
ADDITION

15'
PROPOSED

R.O.W.
ADDITION

60'
EXISTING
R.O.W.

12' TO
EXISTING
R.O.W.

12' SOUTH
BOUND LANE

12' TURNING LANE 11' NORTH
BOUND LANE

ITEMS ELIGIBLE FOR
REIMBURSEMENT FROM THE TOWN
OF ROLESVILLE

ITEMS KALAS DEVELOPMENT ARE
RESPONSIBLE FOR

LEGEND:

ALP
01/20/2021

EXHIBIT B
The Improvements

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875BC8B6-6863-4B74-9AC1-745301EAD865

AutoCAD SHX Text
STIPULATION FOR REUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING WAS PREPARED FOR USE ON THE SPECIFIC SITE, NAMED HEREON, CONTEMPORANEOUSLY WITH ITS ISSUE DATE AS LISTED, HEREON. AND IT IS NOT SUITABLE FOR USE ON A DIFFERENT PROJECT SITE OR AT A LATER TIME. USE OF THIS DRAWING FOR REFERENCE OR EXAMPLE ON ANOTHER PROJECT REQUIRES THE SERVICES OF PROPERLY LICENSED ARCHITECTS AND ENGINEERS. REPRODUCTION OF THIS DRAWING FOR REUSE ON ANOTHER PROJECT IS NOT AUTHORIZED AND MAY BE CONTRARY TO THE LAW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1832 ROLESVILLE ROAD WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
KALAS FALLS ROLESVILLE RD WIDENING



i�\ AMERICAN
a\\\ Engineering

February 8, 2021 

Town of Rolesville 

502 Southtown Circle 

Rolesville, NC 27571 

Attn: Mr. Kelly Arnold, Town Manager 

The costs noted below are the responsibility of the Developer of the Kalas Falls for the 

Rolesville Road Improvements noted as Exhibit C. 

Dear Mr. Arnold: 

Project Estimate Description 

The estimate provided hereinto is for this specific section of Rolesville Road which totals 

+/- 1,550 linear feet. This estimate is broken down to cover the estimated cost for 

project design and construction costs associates with the road improvements matching 
exhibit B that are the responsibility of the developer of the Kalas Falls subdivision. 

Design & Project Construction: 

Construction Design & Management 

Geotechnical, Surveying 

Roadway Construction Cost 

The total estimated project cost is$ 446,030.00 

$ 19,500.00 

$ 8,500.00 

$ 418,030.00 

Upon your review of this, please feel free to call me with any questions. 

Yours truly, 

Hugh J. Gilleece Ill, P.E. 

Managing Principal - Raleigh 

Z:\Jobs\9900\Watkins Property\Documents\Dev. Agreement\Roadway Agreement & Bid Documents\Rolesville Rd 
Developer Portion 1-27-21.docx 

EXHIBIT C
Estimated Project Costs

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875BC8B6-6863-4B74-9AC1-745301EAD865



DocuSign Envelope ID: 875BC8B6-6863-4B74-9AC1-745301EAD865



i�\ AMERICAN
a\\\ E ngi neeri ng

February 8, 2021 

Town of Rolesville 

502 Southtown Circle 

Rolesville, NC 27571 

Attn: Mr. Kelly Arnold, Town Manager 

The costs noted below are the responsibility of the Town of Rolesville for the Rolesville Road 

Improvements noted as Exhibit D. 

Dear Mr. Arnold: 

Project Estimate Description 
The estimate provided hereinto is for this specific section of Rolesville Road which totals 

+/- 1,550 linear feet. The estimate is broken down to cover services for assistance with 

right-of-way and easement acquisition and estimated cost for project design and 

construction costs associates with the road improvements matching exhibit B. 

Easement & R/W Acquisition: Assist with acquisition, prepare the necessary mapping 

and appraisals to complete transactions. 

Engineering, Appraisal, & Surveying 

Estimated Easement Acquisition Cost 

Design & Project Construction: 
Construction Design & Management 

Geotechnical, Surveying 

Roadway Construction Cost 

Total 

$ 35,300.00 

$100,000.00 

$ 135,300.00 

$ 19,500.00 

$ 8,500.00 

$ 394,331.25 

Total $422,331.25 

The total estimated project cost is$ 557,631.25 

Upon your review of this, please feel free to call me with any questions. 

Yours truly, 

Hugh J. Gilleece 111, P.E. 

Managing Principal - Raleigh 

Z:\Jobs\9900\Watkins Property\Documents\Dev. Agreement\Roadway Agreement & Bid Documents\Town of Rolesville 
RW 1-27-21.docx 

EXHIBIT D
Estimated Project Costs

DocuSign Envelope ID: 875BC8B6-6863-4B74-9AC1-745301EAD865



DocuSign Envelope ID: 875BC8B6-6863-4B74-9AC1-745301EAD865



 
 
 
 
 

 
FUTURE TOWN  BOARD MEETINGS 

(Please note this schedule is subject to change) 
 
 
 
August 10, 2024 George Taylor Memorial Marker Placement in Main Street Park – 10:00 a.m. at the 

Gazebo. 
 
August 20, 2024 Town Board Work Session – 6:00 p.m. 

• Consent:  
• Chamber Update. 
• . 
• . 

 
September 3, 2024  Town Board Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. (Staff Reporting: P&R/PW) 

• Proclamation: First Responders Month 
• Proclamation: Community Planning Month. 
• Consent: Minutes of August 6th and August 20th. 
• Legislative Hearing: ANX-23-04 (200 School St.) and REZ-23-05 (Scarboro 

Apartments) 
 
September 17, 2024 Town Board Work Session – 6:00 p.m. 

• Legislative Hearing ANX24-02 – Merritt Property. 
• . 
• . 

 
October 8, 2024  Town Board Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. (Staff Reporting: PD) 

• Proclamation: Breast Cancer Awareness Month 
• Consent: Minutes of September 3rd and September 17th. 
• . 
• . 

 
October 22, 2024 Town Board Work Session – 6:00 p.m. 

• Rolesville Downtown Development Association Report. 
• . 
• . 
• . 

 
Planning Items to be Scheduled by Planning Director: 
 TA-24-01 – LDO Text Amendment – Residential Urban District Street – 

Legislative Hearings 
 REZ-24-01 / ANX-24-02 – Merritt Property – Legislative Hearings 
 REZ-23-01 – Averette & Jones Dairy Mixed Use – Legislative Hearing 
 TBD – TA-24-XXX – LDO Text Amendment Next Round TBD

 
 
TB_FUTUREMEETINGS_20240806  


	6.a._TBMinutes_20240709.pdf
	Board of CommissionersRegular Meeting

	6.b._CommunityGroupFunding_Memo_20240730_rep.pdf
	Background
	Recommended Action

	6.c.1._ED_Memo_ChamberMOU_8.6.2024.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	6.d._Alcoholic Beverages_2024 BBQ  Band.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	11.a.8._Attach_8_ANX-24-03_Vol_Anx_Pet_w_attachments.pdf
	Attach_7_Vol_Anx_Pet_w_attachments.pdf
	ANX-24-03_Owner Consent Form_SIGNED 2024-04-16.pdf
	ANX-24-03_PIN 1758479244 DEED.pdf
	ANX-24-03 LEGAL_METES & BOUNDS_UPDATED2024.05.01
	ANX-24-03_ANX_BOUNDARY_SURVEY_MAP.pdf

	11.a.10._Attach_10_REZ-24-03_2024-O-12_ORD_Exhibits.pdf
	BM2000-Pg1239
	Attach_10_REZ-24-03_2024-O-12_ORD_Exhbt+Conditions

	11.c._Farm Park Entrance Memo.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	_Agenda_RegMtg_20240806.pdf
	Board of CommissionersRegular Meeting

	11.d.2._ROLESVILLE, General, First Amendment to Reimbursement Agreement(161105070.2)-C.pdf
	PROPOSED
	FIRST AMENDMENT TO
	ROADWAY REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
	1. AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING AGREEMENT.
	A. The final sentence of Subsection 3.2.3 of the Existing Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following language:

	Notwithstanding the language of this Section 3 or any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, under no circumstance shall the Reimbursement Credit exceed One Million One Hundred Four Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-six and 34/100 Dollars ($1,1...
	B. Subsection 14.1 is hereby amended by removing the name “Kelly Arnold” and replacing the same with the name “Eric Marsh.”
	C. Exhibit C to the Existing Agreement (the Developer’s Estimated Project Costs) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with that engineer’s estimate from American Engineering dated August 1, 2024 attached hereto as Exhibit A.
	D. Exhibit D to the Existing Agreement (the Town’s Estimated Project Costs”) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with that engineer’s estimate from American Engineering dated August 1, 2024 attached hereto as Exhibit B.

	2. MISCELLANEOUS
	A. Enforceability.  When duly executed and delivered by the Parties, this First Amendment and the Agreement constitute a legal, valid, and binding obligation and is enforceable against the Parties in accordance with its terms, and the Parties hereby r...
	B. Capitalized Terms.  Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement.
	C. Governing Law.  This First Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of North Carolina without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of North Caro...
	D. Continuing Effect.  Other than as expressly amended and supplemented hereby, the Agreement shall remain unchanged in full force and effect.
	E. Counterparts.  This First Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement.  A signed copy of this First Amendment, or executed counterp...
	F. Date of this Amendment.  This First Amendment shall be effective upon the date of its completed execution by the Parties as determined conclusively from the later date of execution written beneath the Parties’ respective signature blocks.





